
STATE OF NEVADA

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS (BESW)
- 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite C121, Reno, Nevada 89502

775-688-2555

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING

9:00 am on Wednesday, April 19, 2023

BESW strives to maintain government transparency and protect public safety. We are offering a virtual
option for attendance via Zoom conference. Cameras will be on for the duration of the meeting.
Supporting materials will be available electronically at the BESW website:
http:/!socwork. nv.gov!board/Mtqs!.

The Nevada Board of Examiners for Social Workers is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Date and Time: April 19, 2023, 09:00 AM Pacific — Daylight Savings Time.

Topic: BESW March Board of Directors Meeting via Zoom

Invite Link: https://uso2web.zoom.us/j/86463786423

Meeting ID: 864 6378 6423
One tap mobile
+16694449171,,86463786423# US
+16699006833,,86463786423# US (San Jose)

Dial by your location
+1 669 444 9171 US
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)

Meeting ID: 864 6378 6423
Find your local number: https://usO2web.zoom.us/u/kekFiCuCNf

Please Note: The Board of Examiners for Social Workers may address agenda items out of sequence, combine
the agenda items, pull, or remove the agenda items, to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting or to
accommodate persons appearing before the Board. The Board may continue agenda items to the next meeting
as needed. (NRS 241.020)

Public comment is welcomed by the Board and will be heard at the beginning of the Board meeting following
the Call to Order and Roll and at the end of the agenda prior to the adjournment of the Board meeting. Public
comment may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. The Board meeting Chair may allow additional time
to be given a speaker as time allows and at his! her sole discretion. Once all items on the agenda are completed
the meeting will adjourn. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial
proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual, the Board may refuse to consider public
comment. See NRS 233 B.126.



Board of Examiners for Social Workers
Board Meeting, April 19, 2023
Page 2 of 3

AGENDA

Items may be taken out of order; Items may be combined for consideration by the public body; Items may be
pulled or removed from the agenda at any time; the public body may place reasonable restrictions on the time,
place, and manner of public comments, but may not restrict comments based upon viewpoint. *NOTE: Per Open
Meeting Law, before speaking, please state your full name for the record.

Pursuant to NRS 241 .030 the Board may conduct a closed session to consider the character, allegations of
misconduct, professional competence, or physical and mental health of a person.

1. Call to Order, Roll Call.

2. Public Comment.
Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken. (NRS 241.020). Public comment may
be limited to three (3) minutes.

3. Board Operations:

A. Review and Discuss March 15, 2023, Board Minutes. (For Possible Action).

B. Review and Discuss March 28, 2023, Board Minutes. (For Possible Action).

C. Review and Discuss April 5, 2023, Board Minutes. (For Possible Action).

D. Review and Discuss Third Quarter BESW Financials through March 31, 2023. (For
Possible Action).

E. Review and Discuss Draft Budget for July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024. (For Possible
Action).

F. Review and Discuss May 1, 2023, Report to Governor’s Office as per Executive
Order 2023-003. (For Possible Action).

G. Review and Discuss April 1, 2023, Report to Governor’s Office as per Executive
Order 2023-004. (Informational).

H. Board Review of Hearing for Virgilio DeSio, License No. 6200-C. (For Possible
Action).

I. Board Review of Application for LMSW, Chester Turner. (For Possible Action).

J. Review and Discuss Status of Recruitment Process (For Possible Action).

K. Review and Discuss 2023 Legislative Session - Flynn Guidici Government Affairs
Advocates Report. (For Possible Action).

L. Executive Director’s Report (Informational).
i. Future Agenda Items: May 2023 - Strategic Plan Approval.
ii. Executive Director Performance Reviews Compiled from Administrative Collaborative

Examples Submitted.
iii. Next Scheduled Board Meeting is 9 a.m. Wednesday, May 17, 2023.

4. Public Comment.
Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken. (NRS 24 1.020). Public comment
will be limited to three (3) minutes.



Board of Examiners for Social Workers
Board Meeting, April 19, 2023
Page 3 of 3

5. Adjournment.

Please contact Karen Oppenlander, LISW at (775) 688-2555 for information regarding the meeting. Supporting
materials can be accessed electronically at the BESW website: http://socwork.nvqov/board/Mtgs!/.

This notice has been posted at the office of the Board of Examiners for Social Workers; the Board’s Web Site
www.socwork.nv.qov; and the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website http://notice.nv.ciov.



3A

Review and Discuss March 15, 2023, Board Minutes. (For Possible Action).



STATE OF NEVADA

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS
(BESW)

4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite C121, Reno,
Nevada 89502 775-688-2555

Board Meeting Minutes, Wednesday, March 15, 2023

The March 15, 2023, Board Meeting was called to order by Dr. Esther Langston at 9:03 am. A
Roll Call was taken. Board members in attendance: Jacqueline Sanders, Linda Holland
Browne, Abigail Klimas, Esther Langston; BESW Staff in attendance were Sandy Lowery,
Karen Oppenlander. In attendance was Board Counsel! Deputy Attorney General Harry Ward.
Consultants in attendance: Nick Vander Poel, Flynn Giudici; and Margaret Del Giudice, SEI.

Public Comment: There was no public comment in person and Oppenlander stated that there
was no public comment in writing or online.

Taking the agenda items out of order due to scheduling conflicts for presenter, Langston moved
to Agenda Item 3H Review and Discuss 2023 Legislative Session (For Possible Action).
Vander Poel from Flynn Giudici, Government Affairs Advocates, is looking for guidance from the
Board on its direction in support or opposition to the Interstate Social Work Compact. The decision
is based on the Board’s review of the fully drafted Interstate Social Work Compact that was just
released by the Council of State Governments. This Compact has been circulated amongst
legislative leadership; and there is also a letter received on March 6, 2023, from Dr. Stacy Hardy
Chandler, CEO of the Association of Social Work Boards in support of the Compact. Board’s
guidance is important as he tries to move this forward in the legislative session. Langston asked
Oppenlander to share her screen for a summary view of the compact. This compact is similar to
other compacts that are at the legislature and almost mirrors a compact that was presented earlier
this week for the Massage Therapy Board. The compact was supported financially by the
Department of Defense. The model presented on the screen cannot have changes made to it and
is the same model that’s being presented around the country. It was sent ahead of time to Board
members so they would have time to preview it.

Vander Poel stated that he is being asked by legislators if the Board supports it. The Compact
details what a social worker would do if they were going to participate in the Compact choosing
to be an individual social worker with a Nevada license or choose to get a multi-state license if
BESW was part of the Compact. The Compact would be very helpful to social workers that want
to practice multi-state. There are details that explain why the Department of Defense put funding
behind this effort to promote the seamless ability for military families to move together when a
service member is redeployed. There was a brief overview of the Compact Commission
description; if BESW decides to participate, BESW would have a seat on the Commission and
would be able to assist with setting up the regulations of the Commission. Vander Poel agreed
that the various Compacts at the legislature this year are quite similar. He asked Matt Schaffer
from Council of State Governments where this Interstate Social Work Compact is being proposed.
Right now, the states listed who are looking to run a bill anticipating the compact language are
Wisconsin, South Carolina, Florida, Missouri, Kentucky, and Utah. This list may grow depending
on which states can do a Compact at this time. For example, he had a conversation yesterday
with Senator Scheible who asked him why he didn’t have a bill drafted for social workers ahead



of the session. Vander Poel explained to her that we didn’t know if the Council of State
Governments were going to get this negotiated in time. Eventually, we received the Compact
language on Monday, February 27th, which was after the bill draft deadline.

Sanders said she reviewed the document, and it reads that at any point when the state elects to
revoke or terminate the relationship, we have options to do that. She said she thinks that when it
comes to the ASWB and our reliance on them, it supports those transient people who are coming
to Nevada. She did not see any concerns and asked if anyone else did.

Klimas commented that in general, she thinks it looks great. She remembers conversations
months ago and thought that staff might comment on this, where if we don’t do it now, we must
wait two more years to do it because Nevada doesn’t have a yearly legislative session. She
asked if our Board staff can get this up and running if it is passed. Lowery replied that if this is
passed, the Board will need to immediately go into a NAC change process because we will have
to operationalize the bill if passed. This would include setting fees, etc., because she suspects
the language will give BESW authority to do this. The question will be, and maybe DAG Ward
can answer, that if the Board is given authority to create these levels of licensure, will we also be
given authority with a fee structure? Or will the Board have to go back through the legislature to
get fees approved? Ward replied that if BESW doesn’t have anything statutorily or in the
regulation concerning fees, then they would be stuck without fees. He thinks that eventually we
would have to go back and get that changed. The Board cannot charge a fee without the authority.

Oppenlander remembered that when this was discussed with Cara Sanner during a recent Board
meeting, she indicated that it isn’t quite that difficult given the way the Compact is set up. There
will be time to operationalize these things. Right now, the Board is approving that our Board would
want to be part of this process. The process of getting it operationalized, the commission forming,
and making some decisions about how the initial states would participate, would provide some
time for BESW to get everything established. To start the process the Board would have to
declare that it wants to participate.

Langston asked that during Covid when we were operating with a lot of telehealth and people
doing multiple states then, did we have fees for people who needed to come into Nevada at that
time to render services from other states? Oppenlander replied that Directive 11 from Governor
Sisolak, was an emergency directive. That was a different situation and our Board had to waive
fees. To operationalize this Compact will happen over time. We’re looking for a starting point
indicating our interest to get into it. She went on to say that mobility has been talked about ever
since she has been in the ED seat. Since 2018, when Susan Nielsen came back from an
Edmonton ASWB conference with a mobility toolkit, this Board has been talking about how to
make licenses more mobile. BESW made moves to make licensing as easy as possible with
endorsements. A lot of discussions took place around reciprocity, which has to do with “is our
state license just like your state license?” Since state licenses are so frequently different,
reciprocity is an ill-used term. We have a good endorsement process, but it is not the gold
standard that a multi-state license would be for those who want that method. DOD is behind it
because makes it particularly easy for service personnel who are perhaps redeployed every two
years, for their family members to pick up and move right away because they can move their
license right away. This is why having interstate compacts for those people is great. And you can
imagine that the DOD really gets behind states that accept the interstate compact model. She
added that the new CEO for NASW national negotiated to accept and support this Compact as it
was important for the national social work community.

2



Langston replied that NASW had an initial model that preceded the Compact. She said that for
those of us before there were state licenses, we had ACSW, Accredited Certified Social Worker.
Her class was the first class in 1972 that took and passed a national exam. The DOD and others
were behind NASW. Therefore, the model for interstate compacts has been around for a long
time. We are just refining it for the 21st century. She asked if there was a motion to approve the
Compact?

Holland Browne commented that she thinks it is critical that we get something done with regard
to interstate compact for a number of reasons. She has some typical reservations, like are we
talking apples and apples, or oranges to apples in terms of training. She thinks that we would be
remiss to delay and not get in on the ground floor. As far as using this model, it is certainly going
to create more work for people. On the other hand, our workforce shortage is so dire that she
feels like we must do something to make it happen.

Motion was made by Linda Holland Browne to approve the Interstate Social
Work Compact Model, as Presented; Seconded by Jacqueline Sanders. The
Motion was Approved Unanimously.

Lowery asked Vander Poel if there a way we can get somebody to take this on to see about
incorporating fee structure matters into the NRS? Vander Poel replied that the way he read the
Compact is that it addresses fees. He will have that conversation with the Legislative Council
Bureau. Vander Poel added that the way it was explained to him from Matt Schaffer at the
Council of State Governments the compact is the compact. He doesn’t think that it would be
changed. Sanders said that in the reading she saw that there is a membership fee that the Board
would have to pay. She asked Vander Poel if we can get an idea of what that fee is for our state
so that we will know what to list as the price to charge to the licensee that is seeking a multi-state
license. Vander Poet replied that he will provide those answers at the next meeting after he has
another conversation with Matt Schaffer at the Council of State Governments. Another point he
wanted to make, as it relates to the Compact, is that it does not go into effect until seven states
adopt the compact. He thinks that the Council of State Governments is focusing on getting seven
compacts passed. Holland Browne commented that she thinks we need to think about fee
schedules because this is a type of enhanced license. As easy as it may sound, it may turn out
to be more complex. Oppenlander commented that she is hearing two different discussions going
on here. We have several categories of licensure right now. She believes that what Lowery is
talking about is adding some other levels for multi-state licenses and the fees associated. There
was another discussion going on about charges working with the commission. As Vander Poel
has been discussing, the first move is to get out of the gate now. The next move is to start to iron
out all these things. We are tracking what other interstate compacts are doing right now. The
Physical Therapy Board, on the morning of our last Board meeting was talking about fees and
structures. They have started off without charging anything for their commission. There was
reference to another group that had determined not to charge extra fees for doing perhaps what
might be viewed as more work for a multi-state compact. Clearly, these are answers yet to be
determined. She stated that compacts have to do with tenacity and keeping your eye on the
carrot at the end of process is required. There is a lot of work to get to the place where the
compact is working effectively. She congratulated the Board because they are at a starting point
to get to a multi-state compact in place. Langston commented that the interstate compact will
be a living document and it will continue to evolve. She said she has an ACSW and the holder of
that was the National Association of Social Work. She still pays a fee every year when she renews
her membership to maintain her ACSW. The Department of Defense still recognizes an ACSW
even if you don’t have a state LCSW.

3



Oppenlander moved to the next portion of this agenda item and shared a letter of
recommendation prepared by Sanders for AB 37. Oppenlander stated that she would like to get
this letter of support approved by the Board today to for a bill that was heard yesterday. Sanders
commented that she was informed that a letter was needed in support of behavioral health
workforce development. She reviewed Board minutes and discussed with Oppenlander,
referencing in the letter when the Board was visited the ideas were explained to us. The letter
was drawn in support of collaborative efforts to develop a behavioral health workforce center. She
stated that were looking to for Board approval. She thinks that it is an excellent way to let them
know that we recognize what their efforts are and that the Board supports them.

Motion was made by Abigail Klimas to Approve the Letter in Support for
Assembly Bill 37 for the Establishment of a Behavioral Health Workforce
Development Center of Nevada, as presented; seconded by Jacqueline
Sanders. The Motion was approved unanimously.

Langston stated that the next item is for Assembly Bill 45. AB45 essentially creates a program
to repay students’ education loans for certain providers of healthcare program in underserved
communities. It will be funded from the revenues from the Unclaimed Property Fund in Nevada.
The inclusion is that the student’s types will include all behavioral health professionals and will
offer repayment of loans on a sliding scale based upon the need and the applicant’s income.

Motion was made by Esther Langston to Approve Support of Assembly Bill 45;
Seconded by Jacqueline Sanders. The Motion was Approved Unanimously.

Oppenlander had other tracking items that she wanted to bring to Board members’ attention.
She asked for Board support of Assembly Bill 69. It has been to a work session and relates to
behavioral health, making certain providers of behavioral health, including social workers, able to
get loan repayment from the Nevada Health Service Corps and there is an appropriation being
made. Langston added that AB69 expands the long repayment program administered by the
Nevada Health Service Corps to include certain providers of behavioral healthcare and will now
include social workers.

Motion was made by Jacqueline Sanders to Approve Support of Assembly Bill
69; Seconded by Abigail Klimas. Motion was Approved Unanimously.

Oppenlander covered several bills including: AB1O8 - the nursing compact; AB139 that adds
more categories for collecting demographic information and AB158 is a compact for emergency
services personnel.

AB 267 is a bill that expands 2021 session bill requiring two CEUs for cultural competency training
and expanding this to six CEU5. When monitoring this bill, Oppenlander determined that need to
testify in support of the bill to testify because senators were asking questions about what social
workers require for CEUs beyond cultural competency e.g. ethics, suicide prevention, and so
forth. The bill presenters had given inaccurate statements about BESW requirements. She called
in for comment and had to select a category of support, opposition, or neutral. She chose to testify
in support to clarify BESW social worker requirements and these circumstances, Oppenlander
asked the Board to support this bill.

4



Motion was made by Abigail Klimas to Approve Support of Assembly Bill 267
that will Increase Hours Required for Cultural Competency CEUs from Two to
Six for Each Two-Year Collection Cycle; Seconded by Jacqueline Sanders.
Motion was Approved Unanimously.

Langston commented that in terms of the requirements that she receives regularly questions
from social workers asking where they can find the required courses. She is aware that the Board
is not in the business of offering training courses, but if the Board is going to have to accept these
requirements, that we should take a serious look at how licensees can get the training required.
Oppenlander acknowledged Langston’s comment and said one of the testimonies made
yesterday by the Nursing Association said the same thing. It was very informative of how much
trouble the nursing staff have had trying to get these courses in when there were only two CEUs
were required. They wanted to know how they are going to manage when six CEUs are required.
She went on to say that she thinks legislators may end up in a quandary because of this difficulty.
Lowery stated that it appears that this bill is an attempt to clarify a confusing 2021 bill. Langston
added that this referred to as Diversity, Equity, Inclusion (DEl) as opposed to cultural competency.

Sanders said that another source of concern is that licensees employed in healthcare, either
hospice or hospitals, etc. often have programs that they are required to complete. The programs
are online training for every employee and the nurses are the ones that obtain approval for the
CEUs and don’t always have the appropriate approvals in place for a social worker. Social
workers will have to complete all these training hours, which could be as many as 90 trainings.
Social workers will have to complete these for the employer, while still not meeting the
requirements for their license. She said she thinks the Board should find a way to make the
nurses aware that they need to obtain approval by BESW for these trainings. She sees this as
being the source of the issue because she receives phone calls from people that know that I’m
on the Board, saying that there are not enough CEUs available to address their needs. Because
they are under the requirements of healthcare industry employers, she thinks the Board should
facilitate a solution. She is currently working get an idea of to learn how BESW can help address
this. Langston commented that she taught for 40-50 years, so she gets calls asking her to get
approval and do a workshop so social workers can obtain CEUs. She agreed that this is an issue
that the Board will have to address if this bill passes.

Oppenlander moved on to AB 268. There is quite a bit of discussion of this bill in the session.
They are trying to get this passed by March 31st so they can start cutting checks to the Executive
branch staff. It is about retention incentives. The checks would be $500.00 per quarter starting
on March 31st The next check would be June l6’ so that two checks could come out of central
payroll during the current fiscal year, and then continuing for eight quarters (2 years) total - $500
per quarter and then $2,000.00 per year for two years. This bill is interesting because it has been
introduced by the Governor. It doesn’t include the social work board pursuant to NRS 353.005,
which is commonly known as the Budget Act. We are not included, along with the NSHE, the
Legislative branch, and the Judicial branch. There are amendments being made and other bills
being put forward. She doesn’t know where this will all end up but suggested that Board members
begin to think that if most people in the State are getting a $500.00 retention bonus for working in
their division, perhaps this Board would consider building it into the BESW budget. She said she
is mentioning this because of potential unintended consequences when boards and commissions
do not qualify for a retention incentive. Langston commented that this was not on the agenda for
possible action and Oppenlander confirmed that we would look at this in April along with the
BESW budget.

5



Langston moved on to Agenda Item 3C — Review and Discuss Fourth Quarter BESW
Financials through December 31, 2022. (For Possible Action).

Lowery said that the financial report is for the end of the second quarter, December 31 2022.
She noted that incomes and expenses should be in the 50% range since it’s halfway through the
fiscal year. Total income is 55% year to date, meaning the Board is above budget projections in
terms of income. Looking at expenses, in terms of staff salaries and Workman’s Comp, etc. we
are at 47%. Expenses are well below the 50% threshold. She mentioned that a couple of
individual items that are high e.g., Workman’s Comp because we never know until after the budget
is determined exactly what we’re going to pay and the audits that they do don’t match our budget
cycle. When the budget is created next month for the next fiscal year, some additional money will
probably be added into that category. The other area that is extremely over is the internet. This
is because when the original budget was created, we were not sure what it was going to cost for
us to be under the EITS system. It is far more expensive than we had budgeted and we will look
at that when we do the next budget cycle. Even with those two overages, the Board is running at
40% total on our expenses. In summary, the Board is 5% over in income and 10% under budget
in expenses.

Langston moved to Agenda Item 3D — Review and Discuss Final Audit and Related Matters.
(For Possible Action). Oppenlander stated that no action is required on these items. They
were provided to Board members based on approvals made at the last meeting. Also, final copies
have been received by the Legislative Council Bureau as required. Further, the Board packets
received communications to those charged with governance. During a discussion the auditor
during the last Board meeting, BESW had some management letter points from the last auditor
and repeated again by the current auditor. Additionally, based on the extra time taken to mitigate
an oversight from back in 2015, the current auditor had to add another point. Once again, this is
that communications that you approved in her verbal I online presentation and the Board has
already determined to consider these governance matters through its upcoming strategic plan.

Next up is to discuss assistance from a CPA for oversight of standards for financial reporting.
Lowery said that based on some recommendations from the Administrative Collaborative, we
received a recommendation for Carol Wood as provides this type of assistance to other small
boards. There are options within Wood’s proposal. Lowery stated that she and Ms. Wood met
to determine what BESW needed, and her fee structure seems manageable. In the preferred
scenario, BESW has an option that includes her taking over doing our payroll and she would
oversee that as part of the overall reporting. This scenario keeps our bookkeeper who would
continue to come on site. Ms. Wood does not come on site. Ms. Wood would be dealing with the
GASB and other financial reporting matters regularly. Langston asked for Lowery’s
recommendation on which setup will help her to work more effectively and efficiently. She in turn
asked Oppenlander which setup she thinks that the auditors would see as being in better
compliance. She said that payroll firms provide standardized products so it may be easiest for
this new vendor to take over payroll to streamline the overall process. Lowery said that the cost
for the Board would be about $800.00 per quarter. Sanders asked if this was going to be more
or less expensive if we have this company doing everything, how much, what are the benefits?
Lowery said she was told that the Board must have an accountant overseeing our financials so
that we are following auditor recommendations. The fee is per quarter, which she thinks is
reasonable and comparable to what the current payroll firm costs. In any event, the Board must
have the financial oversight that will be provided. Sanders said if the cost for payroll is
comparable, then we may as well have one service provider. Lowery confirmed that it is
comparable, within about $100.00. Sanders stated that if the Board must have the service this
company provides, she recommends sticking with one vendor.

6



Motion was made by Jacqueline Sanders that the Board of Social Examiners
for Social Workers will Move the Payroll and Financial Reporting to Numbers,
Inc.; Seconded by Abigail Klimas. Motion was Approved Unanimously.

Langston moved to Agenda Item 3E - Review and Discuss BESW’s July 2023 Strategic Plan
as Updated with Presentation by Social Entrepreneurs. (For Possible Action). Margaret Del
Giudice shared her screen to go over the strategic plan, starting with a high-level review of the
narrative provided by SEI. Then she would go over changes made since January strategic
planning meetings. The executive summary will be filled out at the end. The background
introduction includes all the strategic planning since 2018, including the update that SEI did for
2022 and 2023, and then goes into the new 2023 to 2026 strategic plan. The purpose of the plan
is both a management tool and a communications tool, especially now with succession planning
and the transition with a new Executive Director. Most of what has been done since last January
is to build out the methods and approach section because this includes a lot of the context and
considerations informing the strategic plan discussed in January. There are five sections,
including a past SWOT analysis from the prior update. The new analysis is included so they can
be compared. This is exactly what was distributed at the January 23rd meeting. The new parts
are the new critical issues.

SEI built out an interstate compact section based on the conversations from January which will
probably change considering what’s happened today and since January. It goes through the
interstate compact core components, the process of how that came to be, and the main
considerations that the Board discussed.

The next section is legislation. These are the bills and comments about what the Board is tracking,
and those things it may impact. This will probably change a little bit as well. SEI is going to bring
this back in May, so presumably we’ll be able to go into the narrative prior to that. The executive
orders that impact the board are discussed briefly although it includes detail on what each one is.
What is considered staff structure is primarily about succession planning and stages for
recruitment.

Next is the accounting and financial reporting piece. This cover issues with GASB compliance,
and consideration for hiring accounting expertise for BESW.

She then went into the strategic plan and things that have been changed since the January board
meetings are highlighted in yellow. Oppenlander met with Kelly Marschall, President of SEI a
couple of weeks ago. They entered the critical issues on which you all agreed. Everything that is
not highlighted was verbatim from the January 30th meeting. We had identified critical issues and
goals, but not objectives. Each of the items highlighted in yellow are objectives identified by
Oppenlander and Marschall. She suggested Board members take a quick look at them to see
that these objectives make sense to all.

For Critical Issue One, the objective is that BESW needs to respond to changing conditions in the
national and state landscape that impact occupational licensing. For Critical Issue Two, the
objective identified is that BESW operations would benefit from being more streamlined, efficient,
and user friendly. This explicitly calls out and prioritizes diversity, equity, and inclusion for critical
issue two, communication, education, and partnership. For Critical Issue Three the objective
identified was that BESW seeks to ensure that it has an administrative design, sufficient
resources, and that it approaches its work in a way that helps achieve its mission. This was a

7



placeholder prior so there wasn’t a date given; now the goal is by June 30, 2024. The last goal
was financial strengthening. The objective identified was that the Board needs to strengthen
accounting practices and ensure financial sustainability. Again, we had a placeholder date here.
Now the goal is by June 30, 2025. The last part is the more the nuts and bolts, the components
in turn, like the timeline and the staff. Slight changes were made for clarity. Timelines were filled
in a bit, and in some cases, there are some extra highlighted action steps. For Critical Issue Two
this first one is largely unchanged, except there was one thing added as an action step for the
strategy -- the strategy being to identify and educate partners on the role and impact of social
work practice. We just added the diversity emphasis in here. We hadn’t settled on any timeline
here, and wanted to make sure that everything was not timed for 2026, we wanted to portion
everything out. She pointed out some more specific dates. Create a staff succession plan, March
31st, which is coming up. Implement staff succession plan, July 15t Identify timing and processes
to update the Board documents in the succession plan by October 3l.

Sanders mentioned that in reference to the timelines, her concern is that we are pending the exit
of Oppenlander as the Executive Director. We do not have someone in place. Even if they were
in place by the end of the month, which is highly unlikely, we still have concerns with them meeting
the July 15t timelines or even in October. Are those dates changeable? Can, and should we,
push those dates out further at this time? There is a lot of work that they would have to do to get
into place. She asked if the dates are changeable. Can, and should, Board members, push those
dates out further at this time?

Del Giudice replied that this is a draft, so everything is completely changeable. She will leave
that open to the Board if they want to push these dates out or leave them blank. She stated that
for the time being their plan is to come back at the May Board meeting to present the final plan to
the Board. She asked if there is a time that seems more reasonable, in terms of implementing a
staff succession plan e.g. one month, two months; what feels more reasonable? Sanders
commented that, in her opinion, they have successfully compiled a succession plan.
Oppenlander presented it at the last Board meeting, and the Board has been following it. As far
as whether it is complete, we would have to check with her. Because we’re still searching for an
Executive Director for Oppenlander’s replacement, she is looking at the dates and thinking that
time flies, so she wanted to make sure that these were not held as being concrete. She asked
Oppenlander if she thinks that these dates are still appropriate. Oppenlander replied that
strategic planning is a fluid process. She looks at these documents as what the Board is striving
towards constantly and reporting back to themselves about where they are in their strategic plan.
She doesn’t like the idea of a strategic plan being written, stuck on a shelf, and never looked at.
The current situation would get Board members to look at the strategic plan, she thinks, because
no one knows how this is going to play out precisely.

Langston stated that in terms of the dates they know these are fluid documents. At best, we may
have an Executive Director, hopefully by April the 30th• She thinks it is unrealistic to think that the
staff will have implemented a plan successfully by July 1St, so that the Board may have to push
these dates out or recognize that the process may be fluid, but it is not going out forever. Maybe
October 15t would be a better date. October is down for identifying and timing so that it would be
more congruent. Sanders said that in May when this is brought back, they will have more clarity
on where they are with the Executive Director search and might be able to update timelines.

Del Giudice said she we will make a note elsewhere as well as here that the timing specifically
around this will be fluid. They will also keep this highlighted when they bring it back to the Board
in May. The final goal is financial strengthening, like before. They have added some timing,
although they are less specific here.

8



Langston then moved to Item 3F - Review and Discuss Recruitment Process (For Possible
Action). Langston noted that Board members had each received applications for the Executive
Director position. The Board also received a rubric for scoring applicants during the interview
process. First, the Board will want to pre-select potential candidates based on screening the
applications. Each Board member would score individually choosing a due date and send those
scores back to Oppenlander. Following, the Board will put out a public meeting notice based on
its recommendation for the select applicants that they would like to interview.

Langston asked if Board members wanted to interview all candidates, or do they want to create
a rating scale so that they each could rate and then decide which top candidates to interview
based on the job description and the responsibilities.

Sanders commented that she does not want to interview everyone that has submitted a resume.
She said Board members can look at a resume and tell whether they are in the ballpark for the
position, and we can look at their volunteer history and their awards, etc. to see whether they
have what is necessary to meet the basics of what we need to have a great Executive Director.
Klimas stated that she reviewed as well and there were some that stood out more than others.
She may not have the same criteria as Sanders, though she thinks that is a good lens to look
through. She went on to say that even though there were some that stood out, she would be
open to interviewing all applicants if that was everyone decided on. Langston commented that
they lost Holland Browne (technical difficulties) so they can’t hear from her. She went on to say
that she likes to keep it simple. In summary, we can create a scoring mechanism so that all
applications are evaluated equally or interview everyone. After a complete discussion that began
with the idea of interviewing everyone, the Board ended up determining to narrow the pool of
applicants based on using a universal scoring mechanism.

Ward stated that the interviews would be held in open meetings because this is an executive
position. Klimas clarified that if candidates watch the interviews of other candidates, will they
know the questions in advance that are going to be asked? Ward replied, unfortunately, yes. He
continued and agreed that the Board could do a screening of all of the applicant’s resumes now.
It is up to the Board to decide how they want to do an initial evaluation of resumes. If the Board
is going to weed out some applicants, then those applicants are simply not invited to the interview.

Holland Browne was able to reconnect to the meeting. She stated that she has interviewed many
times, as a director of a department and she has no difficulty reviewing the applications and
narrowing the field before interviews are conducted. If we should do that, then she thinks the
Board needs to have an open meeting in which we interview the candidates. Langston agreed
with her and let Holland Browne know that this part of the discussion had now moved forward to
pre-screening the applications. She summarized that interviewing all candidates does not
necessarily appeal to her if the Board can co-determine criteria for pre-screening the candidates.
After an initial reading of the application materials, she said some of them, for me, were stronger
than others.

It was suggested that Oppenlander provide a scoring mechanism based on the job description
and the job responsibilities which everyone has seen. And based on the scoring, that the Board
could set up an interview process. Oppenlander stated that going forward she would like to keep
this process moving by coming up with some dates that are agreeable for interviews. She said
that from her standpoint, she must get open meeting law documents signed and returned to her
from potential interviewees before she can post anything on the website about the meeting
date(s). Two dates were selected by the Board: first, March 28 and second, April 5th, 2023. As

9



the pool of candidates was not narrowed at this point, she asked that everyone pencil in 9 am. —

3 p.m.to have ample time to interview multiple candidates.

Then a brief discussion took place about filling the position with an Interim Director as a backup
plan in case the interview process needs to be extended. Oppen lander mentioned that this has
not been previously discussed except that it was briefly mentioned in February. Langston asked
Board members how they want to proceed. Sanders said the thinks they should move forward
with scheduling interviews first. Perhaps Board members can help to support whatever needs to
be done but now the Board should focus on hiring a replacement for the Executive Director.

After the conversation(s), Langston summarized again, with intent for it to be clear in the minutes:
Board members will move forward with the two dates for interviewing all or a short list of the
applicants that we have received. After the interviews, they will select the top one or two
candidates. Then the Board will follow up with references, background checks, etc. Once those
are completed, the Board can make a job offer with the top person that they select. Langston
asked for confirmation that this is the way the application process will be managed. Klimas asked
for clarification on who the interview questions are being sent to, and what the timeline is for
completing review prior to the interviews. Langston replied that they will be completed by Friday.
Oppenlander had already sent us some and asked us to look at them and send back any changes
to her. For the interviews, they will schedule them, and Board members will select questions for
each of them to ask the candidates. She reiterated that everybody must be asked the same
questions. If candidate one asks for an explanation, that explanation must go through all those
other candidates.

Klimas asked if Board members each picked out their top three candidates, is there a way they
can communicate that with each other, or not, with open meeting law? Ward answered that
Oppenlander could help with that. He said Board members could send her the top three. Then
she could do a tally for the Board. That would keep the Board members from discussing the
candidates selected with each other or making their decision based on the others. Based on this
further discussion, Langston stated that the process is moving towards including the top two or
three scores of candidates that Board members will want to interview. She said that, using the
list of job responsibilities provided by Oppenlander, Board members could assign points from
one to five on those responsibilities for the applicants. Board members would send their scoring
numbers to her. An average of the scores from the Board members would determine which
candidates have the top (highest) scores. Those candidates would then be interviewed. Klimas
verified that each category that Oppenlander created in the job description would receive a score,
one being the lowest of five being the highest. She asked if Board members would send those
numbers to Oppenlander, or just a total of those numbers. Langston confirmed that it would be
the total numbers. Langston stated that her concern is that she wants Board members to look
at the same criteria. She doesn’t want each Board member to decide what an Executive Director
should do. Since they each have a list of the job responsibilities, they can use that as a guideline
for scoring and then hopefully, everyone will be looking at the applicants through the same lens.

Sanders spoke about the interview rubric. Holland Browne remarked that probably the most
important question we can ask of every candidate at the end is, what else do we need to know
about you? So often what is on the printed page does not tell you anything about what kind of
working relationship you would have with this person. Langston commented that one of her
favorite questions at the beginning is to ask a candidate to tell her about their self and the
knowledge, values, and skills that he! she will bring to this position. She said folks will tell you
more than you ever want to know sometimes. Sanders agreed.

10



Langston confirmed that Board members have agreed on the process for evaluating these
candidates prior to interviews and will get these evaluations to Oppenlander. She will then inform
Board members, based on their ranking, of who the top tier candidates are. And then interviews
will be scheduled with those candidates. Holland Browne commented that they may not all agree
about that. Langston said they won’t all agree. That is why they are going to do an average of
the scores. That average will become the score that person receives. If while doing our interviews,
Board members may decide that they want to interview other people; and that is an option that is
open. Klimas said that there are 17 subcategories on the job description. She asked if Board
members will be giving ratings on those 17 subcategories based off reading the resumes?
Langston confirmed that for each of those 17 subcategories, Board members will assign each
candidate a score between one and five. One is the lowest, five is the highest. Oppenlander will
calculate average scores for each candidate and give Board members the average so they will
know who rose to the top.

Sanders remarked that the resume doesn’t indicate everything a prospective applicant would
have to offer. She said the recommendation letters gave her more of an insight than what the
resume did for her. Langston replied that they are looking at the candidate’s total package,
including the resume and what their recommendation letters say.

Sanders stated that her goal is to hire someone who will stay as long as Oppenlander did and
not someone who will take us a couple of steps backwards. Oppenlander put in so much work
to get us to this point, and we don’t want the Board to stagnate. The goal is to continue to move
forward and flourish. Sanders checked that those people that submitted their resume without a
letter of recommendation, only provided references, they are not going to be called for interviews.
Langston confirmed that such an application would be considered incomplete. The job
description described professional references. Note: If an applicant had supplied references vs
reference letters, then they would not be giving the Board as complete of a picture and would
likely have a lower overall score.

Oppenlander said that when she receives the scoring that may narrow the pool of applicants,
that is who will end up in the top tier and those are the ones who will go on the agenda for an
interview. Their names will end up on a public agenda and she will send the potential interviewees
open meeting law waivers. To proceed, she must get those back from the candidates before
posting. Sanders suggested that, because it’s just a matter of scoring what they have already
read, the deadline for sending applicant names to Oppenlander would be the end of Thursday
so that she can send her documents out on Friday morning. Langston agreed to her suggestion.

Langston moved to Agenda Item 3Fii - Governor Lombardo’s Gubernatorial Appointments.
Oppenlander advised Board members that there a sheet in their packets which tells them how
to suggest to somebody that they apply to be our public member because we have a Board
opening. An open position has been listed online in the Governor’s office for about a year, and
that has not provided results. She stated that Board members are going to have to recruit. It was
suggested placing an ad with NASW Nevada by Langston because NASW Nevada members
may know people and organizations in the community that they believe will be a good public
member and they can help us recruit. Her mindset on the public member was to look for
somebody in Reno. She doesn’t know people in Reno anymore because over the years that she
worked with them have all retired. A public member in the Reno area who could go into the office
and sign checks, etc. without having to send stuff back and forth between north and south would
be most suitable. She said if Board members know people who would be a good public member,
please ask them to submit the application that is online. The application is in the Governor’s
portal. She asked Oppenlander if she could pull that application from the Governor’s portal and

11



send it to each Board member, so we they will have it handy as they try to recruit.
Oppenlander replied that she could. She said the easiest way to get there is to google search
State of Nevada Boards and Commissions. The page she copied and sent to Board members in
the Board Packet is the same page that they and an applicant will see. Langston asked if those
people in the north, including staff, know somebody, to please recruit them so we can get that
process moving. Related, Oppenlander replied that in April we’ll have to agendize an item for
check signers. They must be approved by the Board because Board Minutes must be provided
for the bank. In the meantime, we have board approved check signers with minutes from a year
ago where she and Holland Browne are authorized to be signers.

Langston moved on to Agenda Item 3G — Board Review of Hearing for Virgilio DeSio,
License No. 6200-C. (For Possible Action). Ward stated that he has nothing to report on this
and requested that it to be put on a future agenda.

Langston moved to Agenda Item 31 — Review and Discuss Executive Orders from
Governor Lombardo (For Possible Action). Oppenlander stated that in February she
provided copies to Board members of Executive Order 2023-004 that requires a report be
submitted on April 1st; and Executive Order 2023-003 that has a report due on May 1st She
was contacted last week and informed that there is a format coming for the April 1st report. It
has not arrived yet. So, she did not bring Board members the April 1st report so they could see
it before she submits it. We do have the format for the report from May 1St and she showed it to
the Board during the last board meeting.

Within the May 1st report, we placed our requests for NAC changes and have had to ask for
permission to make required changes for SB44 from the Governor’s office. We have not
received approval. For the April 15t report, we’re having a problem because they involve some
of the same things and without a format this has been very confusing for staff. To show you
where we are at, Lowery has put together all the potential NAC changes that would be
encompassed in any of the scenarios, as we understand them. What we are asking for today
is the Board’s approval to use the NAC changes that are in the report she is sharing now so that
we can complete April 1st and the May 1st reports as needed.

Lowery stated that one of the challenges with the Governor’s executive orders is that he is asking
us to do things outside of what the Nevada State administrative manual says about doing NAC
changes. When NAC changes are done, the first thing that happens is that the Board looks at
the NACs and makes recommendations for changes, including the fact that the Governor wants
us to eliminate 10 or more NACs. Since we need to add in changes from SB44, we would need
to be making NAC changes anyway. The Board has a document that encompasses all those
things. One of the things that we have recommended for removal, to eliminate 10 regulations that
we don’t need. First, 641 B.075 which is evidence of a license. This is legacy language that
required social workers to always carry their license. That is no longer required because we have
online real time verification of a license for anyone 24/7. The second thing we are recommending
removing is the Provisional “B” license. It is a highly underutilized license and is exceptionally
confusing. The Board has only issued four of these in the last three years. Provisional “B” allows
for an applicant to have a degree in a related field (psychology, sociology, human development,
or family studies) and if they are then enrolled and attending classes in a social work program,
they are eligible for a Provisional “B” license. We are proposing to remove that as a provisional
license type because it is cumbersome, difficult, and underutilized. NAC 641B.028 is highlighted
out because it is part of the language for the Provisional “B.” SB44 gave us the authority to do
an inactive status. Right below in blue is a definition of what inactive status is because that is
part of a required NAC so that will be an addition. Scrolling on down, we are also defining what

12



a Licensed Master Social Worker is, again out of SB 44. We are refining the definition of telehealth
so that it means delivery of services from a licensed provider to a client at a different location
within the state of Nevada. This says that if a licensee is in Nevada, they are a Nevada licensed
person, and they are treating somebody in Nevada. It is just tightening up a little bit of our
telehealth language because of COVID. A licensee must be licensed in Nevada, treating
somebody in the State to be able to do telehealth or virtual treatment of any kind. Continuing
down, this is the language for inactive status. This language is based on a request through ASWB
to all Executive Directors asking them for language around inactive status. We took that and put
it together with the stipulations in the law. Next, we are removing anything around the Provisional
“B” and adding the Licensed Master Social Worker because these are requirements that are
based on SB44 and remove the ability for a master’s level individual to take the bachelor’s level
license. If an applicant is master’s level, they take the master’s exam, if an applicant is bachelor’s
level, they take the bachelor’s exam. This allows for a much smoother endorsement process.
Again, removing anything around a Provisional “B” and changing license restoration from two
years to one year. One of the things that the Governor requested was that we identify a way to
save licensees money. Currently, if an individual lets their license expire for the next two years,
they must restore their license, which means two years’ worth of license fees, a $200 fine and
providing copies of all their CEUs. We are reducing it down to one year. If they go past one year,
they simply must reapply, a cost savings for them. Moving that from two to one, they do not need
to provide ASWB exam scores. They never have on a restoration. All the yellow or red text is
removing all the Provisional “B” matters things and clarifying the language for a Provisional “A”
license, which we will still offer. That is a 90-day temporary license. An applicant gets it, they
must pass an exam within 90 days. If they don’t pass, the provisional license expires. Graduation
from a social work program is required. This way we’re only doing provisional licenses for
individuals who have already received a social work degree instead of granting a provisional
license for somebody who is still in school for a social work degree. Langston noted that the
transcript must be forwarded by the register’s office. An applicant can’t submit an online transcript.
Lowery confirmed that it must be an official transcript from the university submitted directly to the
Board. They are sent electronically, but it cannot come from the applicant, it must come from the
school. Moving on, again removing provisional language. We don’t have in the fees removing
the revoked license because we don’t use that. Then adding fees for reinstatement of an inactive
license and adding Licensed Master Social Worker. There is a removal of revoked and
reinstatements all the way through this.

Langston asked that when we were discussing fees based on the interstate comment compact,
is it possible for the Board to add fees for some of what will be involved in the interstate compact?
Lowery responded that no, the Board must have the authority in our NRS to create fees before
we can do that. That is why she was asking the lobbyist to, when he’s dealing with the interstate
compact matters and they’re writing the bill language, add language saying that we can create
fees for it. If he doesn’t add that in, we will not be able to charge fees, which now means even if
it goes through in 2025, before we can operationalize it, there is no capacity for fees. We can’t
add fees for things that are not legislated.

Next, she covered licensing by endorsement. One of the things that happened with Governor
Lombardos closing of all remaining emergency directives is we have lost our ability to do
expedited endorsements. . We did this as a part of the COVID emergency directives. We would
like to continue the policy. What we have been doing is if an applicant applies for endorsement
from another state and in the application reports no legal history and no sanction history, once we
receive a fingerprint packet, transcripts, and license verification, we will immediately license them,
even though we don’t have the background check report back yet. We were licensing initially and
then waiting to receive the background check. In the two and a half years that we have been

13



doing that, we have had two applications for endorsement come back where their application said
no, they didn’t have a legal history and their background check said yes. This has been a low risk
for us. The process worked very well, but Governor Lombardo has removed the ability to do that.
Now we cannot issue an endorsement until we get the background check reports, which take
eight to 12 weeks. That is a workforce issue. So, we have created language here to allow us to
go back to doing that expedited process. We had some language under the LISW internship that
should have been removed last time we did NAC changes, but we didn’t see it and didn’t do it.
The substantially equivalent information is removed from the LISW internship. This was already
removed from the LCSW. One of the things we’re discovering is that interns are trying to do
internships in two states simultaneously. That becomes a huge liability issue in terms of where
you are treating people, how you are tracking your internship hours. We are including a stipulation
that says an individual can do one internship in one state at a time, and that they cannot practice
outside of the State of Nevada while in an internship. They were not able to do so during COVID.
We didn’t let interns go outside of our state because it was way too risky. Langston asked if that
is a result of all the online master’s programs. Lowery responded that it is not that. She has an
intern right now and she can’t stop her. She is doing her internship in the State of New York and
in the State of Nevada. She didn’t tell us that she was doing an internship in New York. She has
been flying back and forth between Nevada and New York. Lowery wants to be able to stop this
as there is no way to ensure that she’s treating the right people in the right state when she’s saying
she’s doing it. We have some issues with Utah in that same area.

Lowery moved on to explain supervision changes. The language that is crossed out is the SB44
language, which removes the requirement for any onsite supervision. Next, she discussed
broadening the automatically approved CEU pool. This reduces workload for the staff, makes it
easier for licensees, especially with people that are now licensed in multiple states. Following,
she discussed impaired practice. She has been working with the nursing board disciplinary unit
to look at their language so that we have a process for managing impaired practitioners, which is
not necessarily the same as disciplinary action. Under professional incompetence, we have added
impaired practice language.

Oppenlander asked Lowery to explain the color coding she used. She explained that there are
two different reasons. It will help with distinguishing the two parts of the motion that will be
needed. Lowery stated that the motion she would request is for the Board to accept the proposed
changes, subtractions, and additions to NAC 641B so that they can be moved forward to comply
with the gubernatorial directives and our required NAC change process. Lowery explained that
while looking through the document, there is a pink highlight on any NAC where there was an
addition or a subtraction. If it was a brand-new NAC that didn’t exist before, you would see, like
on the first page where it says inactive status, it is inserted. There is no number because the
Board doesn’t assign the numbers. Any regulation with changes has a pink highlight over the
term NAC. That way it is clear which ones are completely left the way they were, and which ones
are being amended in some way.

Oppenlander stated that another part of the conversation that ought to be on the table prior to
voting is that we are being thrust through a process that typically takes months to do. We have
45 days to do it. The administrative manual, written in 2015, is lengthy. It is the manual we must
follow to get through the NAC changes. There are many steps. It is highly unlikely that we can
get there from here in the time left available. Having said that, we are going to make every effort
to get as far as we can and document how far we got. She said that it is doubtful that we can
complete all the steps in the administrative manual like we would do if we were going through,
not a theoretical, but an actual NAC change process at this stage of the game. We have done
our best. We have asked for permission to do certain things and haven’t received it. Therefore,

14



we will document everything and submit the reports. We are asking for the Board’s approval in a
way that we can submit the reports on time, even though we will not be able to fulfill the
requirements of the Governor’s orders exactly as someone might do it if they had months to get
it done in and had plenty of preparation time to run this through correctly.

Lowery remarked that the order of which things were to be done per the Governor’s executive
orders was not in the order in which things are done per the administrative manual for the NACs.
We have completed the first part, which was we made proposed changes and they have been
reviewed and approved by the Board. The next step will be to go out to public workshops, etc.
We may be able somewhere in April to start that next step of the process. It is not likely that we’re
going to get it done within the timeframe because, unfortunately, the executive order didn’t take
the regulations into account properly.

Motion was made by Jacqueline Sanders to Accept the Proposed Changes,
Subtractions, and Additions to NAC 641B as Requested by the Governor;
Seconded by Holland Browne. Motion was Approved Unanimously.

Langston moved to Agenda Item 3J, Executive Director’s Report (Informational).
Oppenlander shared future agenda items. In May 2023 there will be an agenda item for strategic
plan approval. Another item coming up on a future agenda item would be NRS and NAC changes.
NRS changes will come from the legislature session and NAC changes that are compatible with
that will need to be handled, and any of the ones that we get will need to finish as per the Executive
Orders. Another upcoming agenda item will be interviewing candidates for the Executive Director
position. Furthermore, Sanders and Ward have been creating a Screening Policy matrix that will
modify the current process. The next regular Board meeting (not interviews) is at 9:00 AM
Wednesday, April 19th, 2023. She stated that there is no further information to report. We can
move to public comment and there is no public comment written or online at this time. Langston
thanked Sanders for her due diligence in working on the Screening Policy.

Kilmas noted that the Board may have missed agenda items A and B, approving the minutes of
the last meeting. Langston thanked her for bringing it up, as she is correct; and it was not done.
She moved to Agenda Item 3A — Review and Discuss January 30, 2023, and February 15,
2023, Board Minutes. (For Possible Action).

Motion was made by Abby Klimas to approve the January 30, 2023, and
February 15, 2023, Board Minutes; seconded by Jacqueline Sanders. The
Board Minutes for January 30, 2023, and the Board Minutes for February 15,
2023, were approved unanimously.

Agenda Item 4 — Public Comment. As there was no in-person, online, or written public
comment, Langston moved on to Agenda Item 5 — Adjournment. Langston adjourned the
meeting at 12:40 p.m.

Minutes Respectfully Submitted by Caroline Rhuys.

15



3B

Review and Discuss March 28, 2023, Board Minutes. (For Possible Action).



STATE OF NEVADA

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS
(BESW)

4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite C121, Reno,
Nevada 89502 775-688-2555

Board Meeting Minutes, Wednesday, March 28, 2023

The Board meeting for March 28, 2023, was called to order by Dr. Esther Langston at 9:15
a.m. after BESW technical difficulties were resolved. Roll Call was taken. Board members in
attendance: Linda Holland Browne, Abigail Klimas, Esther Langston, and Jacqueline
Sanders. BESW Staff in attendance: Karen Oppenlander. In attendance was Board Counsel!
Deputy Attorney General Harry Ward. Guest in attendance: Victoria L. Erickson, LCSW.

As there was no Public Comment in-person, online or written, Langston moved to Board
Operations, Item 3A, Review and Discuss Recruitment for Executive Director. (For
Possible Action). Introductions were made. A brief outline of the agenda was reviewed. Next,
the Board reviewed the position as outlined in the position description.

Next, the Board members asked Candidate Victoria L. Erickson, LCSW a set of pre-determined
interview questions. After the interview, Langston made closing comments and thanked the
candidate for her time.

Next, the Board made a motion to go into closed session to discuss business matters related to
the recruitment process e.g., determining a timeline for decision making.

Motion was made by Abigail Klimas to Move into Closed Session for the
Purpose of Discussing Business Related to the Recruitment Process;
Motion was Seconded by Jacqueline Sanders. Motion Approved
Unanimously.

Closed Session

Motion was made by Abigail Klimas to Return to Open Session; Seconded
by Jacqueline Sanders. Motion Approved Unanimously.

Langston moved to Public Comment. There was no public comment in-person, via email, or
in writing. Hearing no public comment, Langston adjourned the meeting at 11:02 a.m.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Karen Oppenlander.



3C

Review and Discuss April 5, 2023, Board Minutes. (For Possible Action).



STATE OF NEVADA

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR SOCIAL WORKERS
(BESW)

4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite C121, Reno,
Nevada 89502 775-688-2555

Board Meeting Minutes. Wednesday, April 5, 2023

The Board meeting for April 5, 2023, was called to order by Dr. Esther Langston at 9:03 am.
Roll Call was taken. Board members in attendance: Linda Holland Browne, Abigail Klimas,
Esther Langston, and Jacqueline Sanders. BESW Staff in attendance: Karen Oppenlander.
In attendance was Board Counsel! Deputy Attorney General Harry Ward. Guest in attendance:
Jacqueline C. Jones, LMSW.

As there was no Public Comment in-person, online or written, Langston moved to Board
Operations, Item 3A, Review and Discuss Recruitment for Executive Director. (For
Possible Action). Introductions were made. A brief outline of the agenda was reviewed. Next,
the Board reviewed the position as outlined in the position description.

Next, the Board members asked Candidate Jacqueline C. Jones, LCSW a set of pre
determined interview questions. After the interview, Langston made closing comments and
thanked the candidate for applying for this position.

Following, Langston moved to Agenda Item 3B - Review and Discuss Closing Out the
Interviews Based on Applications Received. (For Possible Action). Oppenlander stated
that this agenda item is expressly for making a formal motion where the Board may say that out
of the entire group of candidates, that the Board Members are choosing to reduce the pool to
the two candidates who have been interviewed.

Jacqueline Sanders Made a Motion to Close the Recruiting Process and to
Consider the Two People Interviewed; Seconded by Linda Holland Browne.
Motion Approved Unanimously.

Following, Langston moved to Agenda Item 3C - Review and Discuss Selection of the
Executive Director. (For Possible Action). Langston continued by stating that we will now
enter a discussion about the candidates i.e., review and discuss the candidates: Victoria L.
Erickson, LCSW and Jacqueline C Jones, LMSW.

Holland Browne stated that BESW has two exceptional candidates. I of course, along with
everyone else, have scored our candidates. And if I am going strictly by numbers and nothing
else, my score indicates that Erickson would be first choice. However, I’m very impressed with
Jones. I don’t think she has the level of involvement that Erickson has locally, statewide, and
nationally. I also don’t feel she has a good concept of our disciplinary responsibilities and role,
which of course is our purpose in existing in terms of protecting the public. So, from that
perspective, I think Erickson is a more viable candidate. Jones brings something unique to the
Board. She brings up some interesting issues around diversity and employment; but I don’t see
her as having legislative experience, understanding of the open meeting law, which is critical,



and perhaps did not grasp the question we asked about how you handle complaints from the
public or licensees about staff, Board members and so on as we must be responsive. We can’t
simply defend and protect everyone. We have to ask hard questions. We must give those
complaints serious consideration. From that standpoint, I feel that she’d have a sharp learning
curve coming into our agency. Langston thanked Board Member Holland Browne and asked
for additional comments from the Board.

Member Sanders shared a different opinion regarding Jones and clarified that this was her
unbiased judgment. I did notice that there was a hesitation when it came to the discussion of
policy and how they would be handled, but I would also hesitate because I would have to go by
policy and when I am not presented with that policy book, you have to be mindful of what your
statements or your judgment would be because every complaint could be something different.
You automatically respect and represent the Board. You also respect and represent the public.
So I would have to look at what each individual concern is before I make a judgment on that.
The open meeting law, she stated, had been new to her; but she did read up on it and has
learned through interactions with Karen etcetera. I can relate to that. DAG Ward supports me
with that still. So, I won’t hold any concern of that. I judged her and I used the point system that
we had. I had Ms. Jones coming out ahead.

Klimas indicated that the candidates scored differently in categories but coming out to the same
overall score. She said that knowing Erickson through this Board, including her background,
and understanding, gave me a little bit more comfort since she has been an integral part of
bringing this Board to where it is right now. I was incredibly impressed with Jones and her
experience. In the categories that I did rate her lower in, I think that those are all learned things
(e.g., open meaning law, testifying in front of a legislative hearing), and I would have no concern
about her learning to do that. So, I think they have very different strengths, and they present
themselves very differently. I think Erickson has more of a quiet confidence and Jones speaks
in a way that is engaging and she seems like she can handle anything that comes her way. I am
looking back through my notes and will need some more time to collect my thoughts.

Langston said that she listened to both very carefully. I rated both of them. My rating is higher
for Erickson than it is for Jones. I grant that some of the areas where Jones lacks experience,
those are learned things. In terms of the learning curve and where we are and where we are
moving and where we are trying to go and what we are trying to keep building on, I had a higher
rating for Erickson. Langston asked if there was any further discussion from the Board or
questions to DAG Ward?

Ward clarified that all that’s required for us to do today is to openly discuss it and the possibility
of voting for the next executive director because it is for possible action. Langston followed and
indicated that the discussion is now open for possible action on the selection of the Executive
Director position. It was clarified that there was previously an agreement to make an offer to a
candidate and if the candidate does not accept it, then BESW will reopen the position.
Langston asked if there was any further discussion from the Board Members on the selection
of the Executive Director? If there are no questions, I will entertain a motion.

Linda Holland Browne Made a Motion for BESW to Offer the Position of Executive
Director to Victoria Erickson; Seconded by Abigail Klimas. Roll Call Vote:
Holland Browne — Aye; Klimas — Aye; Sanders — Nay, Langston - Aye. Motion
Carried.



Langston summarized that the position of Executive Director will be offered to Victoria
Erickson; in the event Erickson declines the position, the position for Executive Director will be
reopened.

Langston moved to Public Comment. There was no public comment in-person, via email, or
in writing. Hearing no public comment, Langston adjourned the meeting at 11:00 a.m. after
thanking the Board Members for their due diligence in this process. I really appreciate your
commitment of time and effort to go through this process and to really give it clarity and thought
because we all know that this is a very critical position to how this Board will function and move
forward. You all are fantastic Board Members.

Respectfully submitted by Karen Oppenlander.



3D

Review of Third Quarter BESW Financials through March 31, 2023. (For Possible

Action).



M
ar

ch
A

nn
ua

l
B

ud
ge

t
FY

22
12

3
M

on
tly

B
ud

ge
t

-
M

ar
ch

M
on

th
ly

A
ct

ua
l

-
M

ar
ch

F
u
n
d

B
al

an
ce

$
12

,1
06

.0
0

7
5

%

M
on

th
ly

V
ar

ia
nc

e
D

ol
la

rs

M
on

th
ly

V
ar

ia
nc

e
P

er
ce

nt

IN
C

O
M

E

40
00

0
R

E
N

E
W

A
L

F
E

E
S

41
00

0
A

PP
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
F

E
E

42
00

0
IN

IT
IA

L
L

IC
E

N
S

E
F

E
E

43
00

0
E

N
D

O
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

F
E

E

44
00

0
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

A
L

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
E

E
S

45
00

0
R

E
N

E
W

A
L

L
A

T
E

F
E

E

46
00

0
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

T
IO

N
O

F
L

IC
E

N
S

E

47
00

0
D

IS
C

IP
L

IN
A

R
Y

C
O

S
T

S

48
00

0
M

IS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S

49
00

0
IN

T
E

R
E

S
T

T
ot

al
In

co
m

e

A
nn

ua
l

Y
ea

r
to

A
nn

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e
D

at
e

D
ol

la
r

A
nn

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e
P

er
ce

nt

S
ub

-A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al

50
5,

12
5.

00
42

,0
93

.7
5

44
,0

62
.5

0
-1

,9
68

.7
5

10
5%

39
5,

68
0.

50
-1

09
,4

44
.5

0
78

%
35

,0
00

.0
0

2,
91

6.
67

5,
80

0.
00

-2
,8

83
.3

3
19

9%
36

,5
37

.5
0

1,
53

7.
50

,
10

4%
75

,0
00

.0
0

6,
25

0.
00

13
,6

87
.5

0
-7

,4
37

.5
0

21
9%

82
,8

24
.0

0
7,

82
4.

00
11

0%
18

,0
00

.0
0

1,
50

0.
00

3,
50

0.
00

-2
,0

00
.0

0
23

3%
29

,0
31

.2
5

11
,0

31
.2

5
16

1%
1,

00
0.

00
83

.3
3

28
1.

25
-1

97
.9

2
33

8%
1,

21
8.

75
21

8.
75

12
2%

3,
50

0.
00

29
1.

67
30

0.
00

-8
.3

3
10

3%
2,

90
0.

00
-6

00
.0

0
83

%
60

0.
00

50
.0

0
20

0.
00

-1
50

.0
0

40
0%

1,
80

0.
00

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

30
0%

2,
00

0.
00

16
6.

67
0.

00
16

6.
67

0%
0

.0
0

-2
,0

0
0

.0
0

0%
7,

50
0.

00
62

5.
00

19
0.

00
43

5.
00

30
%

7,
30

5.
00

-1
9

5
.0

0
97

%
10

.5
0

0.
88

0.
00

0.
88

0%
3.

86
-6

.6
4

37
%

$
6
4
7
,7

3
5
5
0

$
5
3
9
7
7
9
7

$
6
8
,0

2
1
2
5

$
(1

4
,0

4
3
2
8
)

12
6%

$
5
5
7
,3

0
0
8
6

$
(9

0
,4

3
4
6
4
)

86
%

$
65

9,
84

1.
50

$
56

9,
40

6.
86

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

50
05

0
W

ag
es

25
8,

98
6.

00
21

,5
82

.1
6

20
,5

42
.3

4

50
10

2
G

ro
up

H
ea

lt
h

In
su

ra
nc

e
34

,8
96

.0
0

2,
90

8.
00

2,
71

3.
30

50
10

3
In

s
R

eg
is

5,
62

0.
00

46
8.

34
46

1.
60

50
10

4
M

ed
ic

ar
e

3,
78

0.
00

31
5.

00
30

6.
98

50
10

5
P

E
R

S
-E

m
pl

oy
er

pa
id

37
,6

00
.0

0
3,

13
3.

33
2,

91
8.

82

50
10

6
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
In

s.
2,

00
0.

00
16

6.
67

31
7.

56

50
30

0
W

o
rk

m
an

s
C

om
p.

2,
75

0.
00

0.
00

42
5.

94

S
ub

A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al
$

95
%

93
%

99
%

97
%

93
%

19
1% 0%

61
05

0

61
10

0

61
15

0

61
20

0

61
25

0

61
30

0

61
35

0

61
40

0

1
8

8
,5

1
0

.7
4

24
,7

26
.4

0

4,
05

6.
66

2,
76

2.
84

23
,3

50
.5

6

1,
84

0.
71

88
4.

80

C
on

tr
ac

t-
L

ab
or

C
on

tr
ac

t-
A

ud
it

or

C
on

tr
ac

t-
L

eg
al

C
on

tr
ac

t-
L

ob
by

is
t

C
on

tr
ac

t-
P

ay
ro

ll
S

er
vi

ce

C
ou

rt
R

ep
or

ti
ng

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns

L
C

B

-7
0,

47
5.

26

-1
0,

16
9.

60

-1
,5

63
.3

4

-1
,0

17
.1

6

-1
4,

24
9.

44

-1
59

.2
9

-1
,8

65
.2

0

73
%

71
%

72
%

73
%

62
%

92
%

32
%

34
5,

63
2.

00

80
,0

00
.0

0

25
,0

00
.0

0

35
,0

00
.0

0

14
,2

00
.0

0

2,
00

0.
00

5,
50

0.
00

0.
00

8,
00

0.
00

9,
00

0.
00

1,
03

9.
82

19
4.

70

6.
74

8.
02

21
4.

51

-1
50

.8
9

-4
25

.9
4

88
6.

96

-1
,2

72
.3

4

2,
08

3.
33

-1
,1

09
.4

3

-2
,3

16
.6

6

16
6.

67

45
8.

33

0
.0

0

66
6.

67

33
9.

80

97
%

$
24

6,
13

2.
71

$
28

,5
73

.5
0

$

6,
66

6.
67

2,
08

3.
33

2,
91

6.
67

1,
18

3.
34

16
6.

67

45
8.

33

0.
00

66
6.

67

75
0.

00
62

00
0

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
C

os
ts

27
,6

86
.5

4
$

7,
93

9.
01

0.
00

4,
02

6.
10

3,
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

41
0.

20

-9
9,

49
9.

29
71

%

11
9% 0%

13
8%

29
6% 0% 0% 0% 0%

55
%

43
,1

74
.5

1

0
.0

0

11
,4

27
.8

1

18
,5

00
.0

0

0
.0

0

0.
00

0.
00

0
.0

0

10
,5

24
.4

1

-3
6,

82
5.

49

-2
5,

00
0.

00

-2
3,

57
2.

19

4,
30

0.
00

:

-2
,0

00
.0

0

-5
,5

00
.0

0

0.
00

-8
,0

00
.0

0

1,
52

4.
41

54
%

n
o
’

U
/0

33
%

13
0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

11
7%



62
05

0
P

ri
nt

in
g

5,
00

0.
00

41
6.

66
45

6.
11

-3
9.

45
10

9%
2,

58
7.

77
-2

,4
12

.2
3

52
%

62
10

0
C

op
yi

ng
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0%

0.
00

0.
00

0%
62

15
0

T
O

R
T

C
la

im
F

un
d

2,
40

0.
00

20
0.

00
0.

00
20

0.
00

0%
0.

00
-2

,4
00

.0
0

0%
62

20
0

R
en

t
21

,6
00

.0
0

1,
80

0.
00

1,
80

0.
00

0.
00

10
0%

16
,1

50
.0

0
-5

,4
50

.0
0

75
%

62
25

0
B

an
d

G
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
50

0.
00

41
.6

7
0.

00
41

.6
7

0%
0.

00
-5

00
.0

0
0%

62
30

0
R

ec
or

ds
S

to
ra

g
e

3,
00

0.
00

25
0.

00
46

7.
54

-2
17

.5
4

18
7%

1,
19

8.
07

-1
,8

01
.9

3
40

%
62

35
0

P
o

st
ag

e
9,

50
0.

00
79

1.
67

54
1.

16
25

0.
51

68
%

3,
99

8.
65

-5
,5

01
.3

5
42

%
6

2
4

0
0

T
eI

ep
h

o
n

e
15

,0
00

.0
0

1,
25

0.
00

12
9.

13
1,

12
0.

87
10

%
1,

44
4.

83
-1

3,
55

5.
17

10
%

62
45

0
In

te
rn

et
1,

50
0.

00
12

5.
00

61
6.

18
-4

91
.1

8
49

3%
9,

27
1.

89
7,

77
1.

89
61

8%
62

50
0

C
om

pu
te

r
S

of
tw

ar
e

20
,0

00
.0

0
1,

66
6.

66
32

2.
39

1,
34

4.
27

19
%

15
,4

34
.3

1
-4

,5
65

.6
9

77
%

62
55

0
T

ra
ns

cr
ip

ti
on

0
.0

0
0.

00
84

.0
0

-8
4.

00
0%

62
4.

25
62

4.
25

0%
62

60
0

C
O

V
ID

19
U

N
K

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
1,

25
0.

00
1,

25
0.

00
0%

63
05

0
D

ue
s

&
R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
:

0.
00

0.
00

:
0%

63
10

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l

D
ue

s
(A

S
W

B
)

25
0.

00
25

0.
00

0.
00

25
0.

00
0%

25
0.

00
0

.0
0

10
0%

64
05

0
B

an
k

C
h
ar

g
es

12
0.

00
10

.0
0

0.
00

10
.0

0
0%

40
.9

6
-7

9.
04

34
%

64
10

0
C

re
di

t
C

ar
d

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

12
,0

00
.0

0
1,

00
0.

00
1,

03
3.

75
-3

3.
75

10
3%

9,
29

9.
85

-2
,7

00
.1

5
77

%
65

00
0

H
os

t
F

un
d

1,
00

0.
00

83
.3

4
0.

00
83

.3
4

0%
0.

00
-1

,0
00

.0
0

0%
66

05
0

In
S

ta
te

T
ra

ve
l

5,
00

0.
00

41
6.

67
0.

00
41

6.
67

0%
0

.0
0

-5
,0

00
.0

0
0%

6
6
l0

0
0
u
to

fS
ta

te
T

ra
v
e
l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
0.

00
0.

00
0%

67
00

0
T

ra
in

in
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
60

0.
00

:
60

0.
00

:
0%

68
05

0
F

ur
ni

tu
re

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0%
69

3.
70

69
3.

70
0%

68
10

0
C

om
pu

te
rs

1,
50

0.
00

12
5.

00
0.

00
12

5.
00

0%
0.

00
-1

,5
00

.0
0

0%

S
ub

A
cc

ou
nt

T
ot

al
$

27
7,

07
0.

00
$

23
,3

18
.3

5
$

21
,3

25
.5

7
$

1,
99

2.
78

91
%

$
14

6,
47

1.
01

$
(1

30
,5

98
.9

9)
53

%

T
ot

al
E

x
p
en

se
s

$
62

2,
70

2.
00

$
51

,8
91

.8
5

$
49

,0
12

.1
1

$
2,

87
9.

74
94

%
(1

2
8
,5

9
8
.9

9
)

63
%

$
39

2,
00

3.
72

$

N
et

P
o

si
ti

o
n

*
25

,0
33

.5
0

2,
08

6.
12

19
,0

09
.1

4
16

4,
69

7.
14

N
et

P
o

si
ti

o
n

-
A

d
ju

st
ed

*
*

37
,1

39
.5

0
17

6,
80

3.
14

N
et

P
os

it
io

n
In

co
m

e
an

d
E

xp
en

se
s

w
ith

ou
t

F
un

d
B

al
an

ce

:*
*N

et
P

os
it

io
n

-
A

dj
us

te
d

In
co

m
e

an
d

ex
p

en
se

s
w

ith
pr

io
r

ye
ar

Fu
nd

B
al

an
ce

C
A

SH
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
C

he
ck

in
g

71
2,

32
8.

98
S

av
in

gs
:

5,
88

5.
91

C
D

25
,4

52
.3

0

T
ot

al
C

as
h

B
al

an
ce

$
74

3,
66

7.
19



3E

Review and Discuss Draft Budget for July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024. (For Possible

Action).



Budget 2022 / 2023 BUDGET 2023 / 2024
Income

Fund Balance $ 12,106.00 Pending audit

40000 RENEWAL FEES 505,125.00 540,000.00
41000 APPLICATION FEE 35,000.00 38,000.00
42000 INITIAL LICENSE FEE 75,000.00 80,000.00
43000 ENDORSEMENT FEE 18,000.00 23,000.00
44000 PROVISIONAL LICENSE FEES 1,000.00 1,000.00
45000 RENEWAL LATE FEE 3,500.00 2,500.00
46000 RESTORATION OF LICENSE 600.00 1,500.00
47000 DISCIPLINARY COSTS 2,000.00 2,000.00
48000 MISCELLANEOUS

48050 Copies

48100 Lists-Labels

48150 Returned Check Fee

48200 Wallet Card / Wall Certificate

48250 Workshop Fee

48000 MISCELLANEOUS - Other

Total 48000 MISCELLANEOUS 7,500.00 7,500.00
49000 INTEREST 10.50 5.00

Total Income $ 647,735.50 $ 695,505.00

$ 659,841.50 Pending



Expense
50000 Payroll

50050 Wages

50100 Employer Payroll Expenses

50102 Group Health Insurance

50103 Ins Regis

50104 Medicare

50105 PERS-Employer paid

50106 Unemployment Ins.

50100 Employer Payroll Expenses - Other

Total 50100 Employer Payroll Expenses

50300 Workmans Comp.

Total 50000 Payroll $
61000 Contract Services

61050 Contract-Labor

Contract - Board Reimbursemen

61100 Contract-Auditor

61150 Contract-Legal

61200 Contract-Legislative Consultant

61250 Contract-Payroll/Accountant

61300 Court Reporting

61350 Investigations

61400 LCB

61000 Contract Services - Other

Total 61000 Contract Services

62000 Operating Costs

62050 Printing

62100 Copying

62150 TORT Claim Fund

62200 Rent

62250 B and G Assessment

62300 Records Storage

62350 Postage

62400 EITS and AU

62450 Internet (Charter)

62500 Computer Software

62550 Transcription

62000 Operating Costs - Other

Total 62000 Operating Costs

630 63050 Dues & Registration

63100 Professional Dues (ASWB)

63000 Professional Training /Dues

Total 63000 Professional Dues

64050 Bank Charges

64100 Credit Card Processing

65000 Host Fund

660 66050 In State Travel

66100 Out of State Travel

66000 Travel - Other

258,986.00

34,896.00
5,620.00
3j. 780.00

37,600. 00

-Z.000. 00

83,896.00
2,750.00

345,632.00 $

80,000.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
35,000.00
14,200.00

2,000. 00
5,500.00

0.00
8,000.00

S 179.700.00 S

s, 000.00

2,400.00
21,600.00

500.00
3,000.00
9,500.00

15,000.00
1,500.00

20,000.00

9,000.00
87,500.00S

250.00
13,000.oo

5 15,250.00

1,000.00
12,000.00

5,000.00

5 5,000.00

343,766.40

43,620.00
9,600.00
4,886.45

47,783.80
2,500.00

108,390.25
2,500.00

454,656.65

40,000.00
10,000.00
15,000.00
30,000.00
25,000.00

2,100.00
2,500.00

8,000.00

1.32,600.00

3,000.00

1,000.00
21,600.00

500.00
1,500.00
6,000.00

15,000.00
1,500.00

15,000.00
2,000.00

10,000.00
77,100.00S

250.00
10,000.00

S 10,250.00

500.00
13,500.00

5,000.00
S 5,000.00

Total 66000 Travel



67000 Training

680 68050 Furniture

68100 Computers

68000 Office Equipment - Other

Total 68000 Office Equipment

Total Expense

Net Income

Net Income

1,500.00

$ 1,500.00

S 647,582.00

1,50000

$ 12,259.50 S

$ 1,500.00

5 695,106.65

398.35



3F

Review and Discuss May 1, 2023, Report to Governor’s Office as per Executive

Order 2023-003. (For Possible Action).



Order Freezing the Issuance of New Regulations and Requiring a Review of Existing Regulations by All
Executive Branch Agencies, Departments, Boards and Commissions

WHEREAS, state regulations should protect workers, consumers and the environment, while promoting
entrepreneurship and economic growth; and

WHEREAS, state regulations can become outdated, result in unintended consequences, create conflicts or
impose an unnecessary burden on citizens, businesses or government entities; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the state of Nevada that its regulatory environment be concise,
transparent, stable, balanced, predictable and thoughtfully constructed; and

WHEREAS, Nevada’s current regulatory structure is too often unfocused and inefficient, contains regulations
that are obsolete and includes regulations that are unnecessarily onerous, thereby limiting the economic
potential of the State; and

WHEREAS, Article 5, Section 1 of the Nevada Constitution provides that, “The Supreme Executive Power of
this State shall be vested in a Chief Magistrate who shall be Governor of the State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, by the authority vested in me as Governor by the Constitution and laws of the State of
Nevada, it is hereby ordered as follows:

SECTION 1
Every executive branch department, agency, board and commission shall undertake a comprehensive review of
the regulations subject to its enforcement. On or before, May 1, 2023 each department, agency, board and
commission shall provide a report to the Governor’s office detailing how the regulation subject to its
enforcement can be streamlined, clarified, reduced or otherwise improved to ensure those regulations provide
for the general welfare of the State without unnecessarily inhibiting economic growth.

SECTION 2:
As part of its report, every executive branch department, agency, board and commission shall provide a list of
not less than ten (10) regulations recommended for removal, ranking them in descending order of priority.

SECTION 3:
Prior to submitting their respective reports, every executive branch department, agency, board and commission
shall hold a public hearing, after having provided reasonable notice consistent with Chapter 233B of the Nevada
Revised Statutes, to key industry stakeholders, to: (i) vet their recommended changes; (ii) solicit input as to the
merits of those changes and (iii) identify other regulatory changes stakeholders feel are worthy of consideration.
Stakeholder input shall be reflected in the summary of findings and recommendations included in each
submitted report.

SECTION 4:
Unless specifically exempt from this Executive Order as set forth in Section 5, no new regulations shall be
proposed, approved or acted on by any executive branch agency, department, board or commission until such
time as this Executive Order is rescinded.

SECTIONS:
The following regulations are not subject to the suspension set forth in Section 4:

EXECUTIVE ORDER 2023-003

(a) Regulations that affect public health;



Name of department, agency, board or commission: State of Nevada. Board of Examiners for Social Workers
Address: 4600 Kietzke Lane, # C121
City: Reno Zip: 89502 Telephone: 775-688-2555
Director Email: koppenlander@besw.nv.gov or slowery@besw.nv.gov

Section 2 — Regulations for Removal / Section 3 — Mandatory Meeting and Report
The above-named department, agency, board, or commission conducted a comprehensive review of the regulations
subject to its enforcement and identified the following ten (10) or more regulations recommended for removal. The
regulations identified in Section 2 of the Executive Order 2023-03, ranked in descending order of priority are listed below
with the information as required on page 1 of the instruction sheet on the following pages of the report

#1 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 6’11B.075 Evidence of license. (NRS 6’11B.160) Any time a person cngagcs in the practice of 7-8

social work, the person shall carry evidence that is satisfactory to the Board that he or she holds a
license issued by the Board.

(Added to NAC by Bd. of Exam’rs for Social Workers by R113 98, eff. 1 13 99; A by R079 02, 1 9
0G

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.075 is a legacy regulation. When it was written, we
did not have real time internet access to licensing information. Now via the internet a license can be verified
immediately which means that a licensee not longer has to carry their card. Licensees must still post their
license(s) in their office or place of work.

. rur purpuc of paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 641B.275: (a) An applicant must cause
the college or university to forward directly to the Board the evidence of enrollment.

(b) The evidence of enrollment must include evidence, that is satisfactory to the Board, of formal
admission to the program of study and of satisfactory progress toward the degree, indicating that the
applicant will be able to obtain the degree in social work within 3 years.

2. A provisional license issued pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 641B.275 is no
longer valid:

(a) If, upon request of the Board, the licensee fails to cause the college or university to forward
directly to the Board evidence of enrollment that complies with subsection 1.

(b) If the licensee fails to renew his or her provisional license by:
(1) Submitting to the Board the application for renewal on a form supplied by the Board and the

appropriate fee; and
(2) Causing the college or university to forward directly to the Board evidence of enrollment that

complies with subsection 1.
(c) Three years after:

(1) The initial issuance of the license; or
(2) The licensee graduates from a program of study leading to a degree in social work, whichever

#2 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 6418.112 Provisional license: Eligibility; validity; disciplinary action; reinstatement or 12-13
restoration not allowed if license invalidated or revoked; supervision of holder. (NRS
641B.160, 641B.275)

occurs first.
3. A person is not eligible for the issuance of a provisional license pursuant to paragraph (a) of

subsection 1 of NRS 641B.275 if he or she has failed the prescribed examination within 5 years
immediately preceding the date on which he or she submits his or her application.

4. A provisional license issued pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 1 of NRS 641B.275 is no
longer valid if:

(a) The licensee fails the prescribed examination; or
(b) The provisional licensing period of 90 days expires, whichever occurs first.



5. The holder of a provisional license may be subject to disciplinary action pursuant to NRS
641B.400, including, without limitation, the revocation of his or her license.

6. A provisional license that has been invalidated or revoked may not be reinstated or restored. A
person who has obtained a provisional license is not eligible for a second provisional license.

7. Thc holder of a provisional license to engage in social work, to cngagc in social work as a
licensed independent social worker or to engage in social work as a licensed clinical social worker shall
practice under the supervision of a licensed social worker who is:

(a) Licensed pursuant to chapter 641B of NRS; and
(b) Authorized pursuant to the provisions of chapter 641B of NRS to practice in the setting in which

tk, ,f t-k,- f,,r,rr rs

(Added to NAC by Bd. of Exam’rs for Social Workers, eff. 10-25-93; A by R113-98, 1-13-99; R112-00,
1-17-2001; R079-02, 1-9-2003; R122-06, 7-14-2006; R110-17, 2-27-2018; R055-19, 12-30-2019

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.112.1 and 641B.112.2 addresses the requirements
for one of the two provisional licenses currently offered by the Board. This provisional license allows for
individuals with a bachelor’s degree in a “related field” to be issued provisional license while they are
pursuing a degree in social work. We recommend removal of this type of provisional license for several
reasons — (1) it is confusing to applicants; (2) it is confusing to external stakeholders as they do not
understand the scope and requirements for this licensure; and (3) we have only issued four such licenses in
the last four years, so it is not being used. NAC 641B.112.7 addresses a level of licensure no longer available
in Nevada and the languages should be remove.

#3 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 6’11B.028 “Degree in a related field” defined. (NRS 6418.160)-”Degree in a related field” 4
means a degree that includes a curriculum in:

1. Theories or concepts of human behavior and the social environment;
2. Methods used in the practice of social work for intervention and delivery of seMcc&;
3. Research concerning social work, including, without limitation, the evaluation of programs or

practices;
4. Management, administration or social policy; and
5. Ethics in the practice of social work.
(Added to NAC by Bd. of Exam’rs for Social Workers, eff. 11 28 89; A by R112 00, 1 17 2001)—

(Substituted in revision for NAC 641B.058)

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.028 is a legacy regulation regarding a provisional

license that we recommend removing, see above.

#4 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 6’UB.131 “Degree in a related field” defined for purposes of qualifying for license or 15
provisional license. (NRS 641B.160,-641B.22, 641B.275) As used in NRS 641B.220 and 641B.27.
“degree in a related field” has the meaning ascribed to it in NAC 641B.028.

(Added to NAC by ad. of Exam’rs for Social Workers, eff. 11 28 89; A 10 25 93; R113 98, 1 13 99;
R112 00, 1 17 2001)

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.131 is a legacy regulation regarding a provisional
license that we recommend removing, see above.

#5 Regulation I Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 641B.11O Expiration and renewal of license and provisional license; circumstances under 11
which license becomes delinquent. (NRS 641B.160, 641B.280, 641B.290)
1. Except for a provisional license issued pursuant to NRS 641B.275:

(-a-k An initial license will not become delinquent less than 1 year after the date of issuance.
b} (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, after initial licensure, each license will become

delinquent annually on the last day of the month of birth of the licensee and will expire 60 days



thereafter.
2. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, an application for the renewal of a license must

be completed on forms supplied by the Board and submitted to the Board on or before the last day of
the month of birth of the licensee. An application for the renewal of a provisional license issued
pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 641B.275 must be submitted to the Board annually on
or before the last day of the 12th month after the month in which the license was initially issued, until
the expiration of the 3 ‘‘ear period of liccnsurc set forth in NAC 641B.112 or until the license is no
longer valid pursuant to NAC 641B.112.

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.11O.1 and NAC 651B.11O.2 address renewal of a
provisional license that we recommend removing.

#6 Regulation I Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 641B.115 Fees. (NRS 641B.160, 641B.300) An applicant must pay the following fees for 13-14
I ice n sure:
2. Licensed social worker:

(j) Annual renewal of provisional license 93.75

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 6418.115.2(j) address renewal of a provisional license
type that we recommend removing.

#7 Regulation I Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 641B.115 Fees. (NRS 641B.160, 641B.300) An applicant must pay the following fees for 13-14
lice n sure:
3. Licensed independent social worker and licensed clinical social worker:

(i) Initial issuance of provisional license 93.75

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.115.3(i) address renewal of a provisional license

type that we recommend removing.

#8 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 641B.111 Restoration of expired license: Required submissions with application; notification 12
of owed debt; extension for completion of or waiver from requirements of continuing education;
hearing for restoration under certain circumstances. (NRS 6418.160, 641B.280, 641B.290)

2. In addition to the requirements set forth in NRS 641B.290 and except as otherwise provided
in subsection 4, an application for restoration of an expired license must be accompanied by:

(a) Two sets of completed fingerprint cards;
(b) Written authorization for the Board to forward those cards to the Central Repository for Nevada

Records of Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report;
(c) The amount of the fees charged by the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal

History and the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the handling of the fingerprint cards and issuance of
the report of criminal history;

(d) Evidence of the completion of all past continuing education hours; and
(e) Evidence that:

(1) The appropriate examination for licensurc was passed by the applicant; or
-2-)— (1) The licensee has maintained an equivalent license from another state in good standing.
(Added to NAC by Bd. of Exam’rs for Social Workers by R113-98, eff. 1-13-99; A by R112-00, 1-17-

2001; R142-08, 2-11-2009; R025-14, 10-24-2014; R110-17, 2-27-2018; R055-19, 12-30-2019

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.111.2(e)(1) requires the requirement passing an
examination before restoration of an existing expired license. This is an unnecessary requirement and
should be removed. Being licensed with us previously already requires a passing score. There is no need to
repeat this for a restoration.



#9 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 641B.140 Licensed independent social worker: Internship required for licensure; 15-16

requirement may include multiple agencies; approval of postgraduate hours completed in agency;
approval of postgraduate hours in different state. (NRS 641B.160, 641B.230)

3. Upon application to the Board by an applicant who is currcntly a social worker or an associate in
social work licensed in this State, the District of Columbia or any other state or territory of the United
States, the Board may approve and accept for licensurc supervised, postgraduate hours completed in
an agency that provides social work services if the applicant:

(a) Has been continually licensed as a social worker for the immediately preceding 10 years;
(b) Provides evidence satisfactory to the Board of continuous supervision by a licensed master’s

level social worker for at least 5 of the immediately preceding 10 years; and
(c) Has passed an examination recognized and approved by the Board.
4. The Board will approve work submitted by an applicant who is not licensed as an independent

social worker in the District of Columbia or another state or territory pursuant to subsection 3 and
accept it towards the hours of supervision that are required for licensurc pursuant to subsection 1 if
the Board determines that the experience of the applicant is substantially equivalent to or exceeds the
current standards established by the Board for those applicants who complete their supervised,
postgraduate social work in this State.

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.140.3 and NAC 641B.140.4 details the process for
accepting hours from independent social work practice in another state. This is legacy language and is not
longer accurate or relevant to the way the Board goes about accepting hours from another state. Would
recommend adding more accurate language at such time as NAC additions may be considered.

#10 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 641B.150 Licensed clinical social worker: Internship required for licensure; requirement may 16-18

include multiple agencies; approval of postgraduate hours completed in agency; approval of
postgraduate hours in different state. (NRS 641B.160, 6418.240)

5. An applicant who is not licensed as a clinical social worker but has performed supervised,
postgraduate clinical social work in the District of Columbia or another state or territory of the United
States within the immediately preceding 3 years may submit to the Board, for its consideration as part
of a program approved by the Board, evidence of the satisfactory completion of that work if:

(a) A licensing board that accepted the supervised, postgraduate clinical social work submits
verification of the hours of work directly to the Board in a manner that is approved by the Board; and

(b) The Board determines that the experience of the applicant is substantially equivalent to or
exceeds the current standards established by the Board for those applicants who complete their
supervised, postgraduate clinical social work in this State.

Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.150.5(b) is legacy language that details the process

for accepting hours from clinical social work practice in another state. This is legacy language, and we no

longer require hours to be “substantially equivalent.” Recommend removal of this language.

#11 Regulation / Information as Required on page 1 Page number
NAC 641B.160 Supervisors of interns: Duties; additional internship hours required under certain 19-20

circumstances; use of telecommunication technologies to supervise; withdrawal of approval to
supervise; reapplication for approval; disallowance of credit. (NRS 6418.160)

4. A supervisor of an intern may use telecommunication technologies to supervise an intern
remotely, but the supervisor must meet in person with the intern at the site at which the intern
practices social work at least once every month.
Explanation of need to eliminate regulation: NAC 641B.160.4 must be modified related to the passage of
SB44 in the 2021 legislative session. Supervision may now be done 100% remotely.



3G

Review and Discuss April 1, 2023, Report to Governor’s Office as per Executive

Order 2023-004. (Informational).



Order Directing All Nevada Occupational and Professional Licensing Boards to Suspend the Issuance of
Any New Regulations, Show Cause for All Occupational Licensing Requirements and to Provide a
Recommended Pathway for Facilitating Licensure Reciprocity

WHEREAS, Nevada’s economic growth and vitality is dependent upon the depth and quality of the State’s
workforce; and

WHEREAS, Nevada currently has 1.7 job openings for every unemployed person actively looking for work and
there are acute shortages of employees in core sectors of the economy, including, without limitation, education.
health care and technology; and

WHEREAS, Nevada has been identified nationally as having among the nation’s most onerous occupational
licensing requirements, and it is in the State’s best long-term economic interest to have a fair, open, competitive
and inclusive economy; and

WHEREAS, the Sunset Subcommittee of the Nevada State Legislature identified financial disparities and
expressed concerns with practices of Nevada’s occupational and professional licensing boards including,
without limitation, those involving hearing officers, training, operating reserves, fines and fee structures,
electronic access and payments, use of outside counsel and lobbyists and centralized coordination of
expenditures; and

WHEREAS, The State Division of Internal Audits concluded that the current composition and actions of
Nevada occupational and professional licensing Boards may expose the State to anti-trust liability; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Nevada that its occupational and professional licensing boards are
seeking opportunities to attract and retain qualified workers to the State and not create unnecessary barriers to
entry; and

WHEREAS, Nevada’s occupational and professional licensing boards are subject to oversight by both the
legislative and executive branch of government; and

WHEREAS, Article 5, Section 1 of the Nevada Constitution provides: “The supreme executive power of this
State, shall be vested in a Chief Magistrate who shall be Governor of the State of Nevada.”

NOW, THEREFORE by the authority vested in me as Governor by the Constitution and laws of the State of
Nevada and the United States, it is hereby ordered as follows:

SECTION 1:
Effective immediately and until the suspension of this order, all Nevada occupational and professional licensing
boards shall suspend the creation of any new regulations that limit or otherwise impact the ability persons to
enter any occupation or profession in Nevada.

SECTION 2:
Before April 1, 2023, all Nevada occupational and professional licensing boards shall provide a report to the
Office of the Governor and the Director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau detailing all regulations that restrict
entry into any occupation or profession regulated by the board. Section 1 of the report shall include, at a
minimum, all pertinent regulations, fees and other costs, examinations and any other requirements for entry into
any occupation or profession regulated by the board. Section 2 of the report shall include, at a minimum, the
board’s justification for the regulations, fees and other costs, examinations and other requirements set forth in
Section 1 of the report. Section 2 shall also include an analysis of the number of states that currently license

EXECUTWE ORDER 2023-004



1K
H

i



This license was for

the ioitial cohort of

social worhers

beginning in t987

and remains in

esistence for this

group onLy, While

NRS R4tR.tli, this license is nn

NRf b4iR.t8i, longer offered as an

NRf b4tg.200, initial license and is
NRf h4tR.2i2, is phasing out due to

NRS b4tR.2S4, attrition, the license

NRf h4tR.2i5, can he renewed

NRf R4SR.2ib, annually. (a) Annual

NRf h4tR.22i, renewal of license

NRf b4tR,22S, $t25.gP; )b)

NRS E4tR.24i, gesturatinn of

NRh b4tB,2Si, reonbed license

NRf b4ti,2b0, $isi.cp; (c)

NRf b4tR.272, Renewal uf eupired

NRf b4tB.27S, license $2Ri.RR; (d(

NRS b4ti.2Rt, Renewal uf

Licensed associate NRS b4tR.2R2 (fee delinquent license

in social worh NAC lu Rib) $igi.Og No

(a) Initial

application 55gW;

)b) Initial issuance of

license other than

ic. by endorsement

5t25.iO; (c( Annual

renewal of ic.

$525.50, (A) Restore
renuhed lic. $iii.Ri;
)e) Restoration of

RAC h4iR iii, eupired tic. $2RR 00;

NAC b4SR.03S, (f) Renewal of

NAC b4iR.00, delinquent lic.

NAC b4iR.yqs, Stoics; )g) Initial

SAC biiR.5S, issoaece of lic. by

SAC b4iR.tSS, endorsement pars.

SAC b4tR.tSS, to NRS b4tR.22t

SAC b4iR.ttt, $525.00; tnitial

SAC G4tR,tt2, issuance uf lic. by

RAC b4tR,ttS, endorsement purs.

NAC R4SR.t2R, to NRS R4OR.222

RAC R4tR.t4i, $R2.S0; (I) Initial
SAC R4OR.tSi, issuance of
SAC R4SR.tqt, prunisional lic.
NAC R4OR.24R, $53.75; fj( Annual

Licensed social SAC bdti.37R (fee renewal of pron.
wurker NRN in RiS( Iic.$ q3.75.

Requires licensees graduate frum

an accredited social wurh program

cnrrespunding to categury of

license sought (Bachelors of Social

Worh); Requires licensees pass

qualifying national esam

corresponding to categury of

license sought. Requires two sets of

completed hngerprint cards with

written authurinarion fur the Roard

tu forward those cards to the

Central Repository for Nosada

Records nf Criminal history for Pee is required for processing of

submission to the Federal Rureao application pursuant to

of Innestigation for its report. SAC R4t8.ttf.

Through a project

funded by the

Department of

Defense, the Council

on State Gonerements

National Center fur

Interstate Compacts

recently issued Social

Worh Licensure Model

Legislation on February

27, 2023. The Roard of

Enaminers for Social

Worhers has approned

this language and is

currently worhisg with

the 2023 State of

Nesada Legislature and

nationally to eeact this

model legislation ieto

law with intert to

officially (ois the Social

Worh Licensure

Compact. (Continued

No below)

(Continued from

abone) The Association

of Social Worh Roards

states that if puu are

already licensed in uoe

state (any state in the

US), the majority of

boards (including
Nenada) will hane

pronisions for Iicensure

by endorsement

sometimes called

reciprocity.

Endorsement

pronisiuns often

pronide espedited

licensing because an

enisting actine license

in good standing is

accepted as enidesce

of fulhlling licensore

requirements is the

new state. The process
yes naries among states. Tes yes N/A

S/A N/A No No N/A

yes



(a) Inital

application $50.00;

(b) Initial issuance of

license ethen than

ic. by endorsement

$125.00; (c) Annual

renewal of lic.

$125.00, (d( Restore

renoked lic. $005.00;

(e) Restoration of

enpired lic. $200.00;

(0 Reoewal of

delinquent lic. Requires licensees graduate from

$100.00; (g( Initial an accredited social work program
issoance of lic. by corresponding to category of

endorsement pars. license tooght (Masters of Social

to NRS R4OR.271 Work or hiRher(; Reqaires licensees

$125.00; Initial pass qualifying national eoam

issuance of lic. by corresponding to category of

endorsement pars. license sought. Reqoires two sets of
so OHS 641R.272 completed fingerprint cards with

$62.50; (I) Initial written authorization for the Roard

issuance of so forward those cards to the

pronisioeal lic. Central Repository for Nenada

$H3.75; (j) Annual Records of Criminal History for
renewal of pron. submission to the Federal Rareaa

Iic.$ 03.70. of Inuestigution for its report.

(a) Initial

application $50.00;

(b( Initial issuance of

lic. other than lic. by

nndnruement

$125.00; (c( Annual

renewal of lic.

$167.56;

(d( Restoration of

renohed ic. $150.00; Requires licensees graduate from

(e( Restoration of an accredited social work program
enpired lic. $200.00; corresponding to category of

(f( Renewal of license sought (Masters of Social

delinquent lic. Work or higher); Requires

$100.00; (g) Initial completion of a period of

issuance of liz. by supervised independent practice;

endorsement puru. Requires licensees pass qualifying

so ORS 6416.271 national enam corresponding to
$12S.00; (h) Initial category of license sought. Requires

issuance uP lic. by two sets of completed hngerprint

endorsement puss. cards with written authorization for

to 660 641R.272 the Rnard so forward those cards to

$62.06; (i) Initial the Central Repository for Nenada
issuance of Records of Criminal History for Fee is required for processing of

prunisinnal submission tn the Federal Rureau application pursuant to NAC
Iic.$q3.75. Pes of Inuestigatiun fur its report. 6418.110.

yes

Fee is required for processing of

application pursuant to NAC

6411.115.

Licensed masters

social worker See OHS in Rio

Licensed

independent social See OHS is RiO and

cnnrber NAC in 616

Yes (See abone) Yes Yes 0/A

On (See abone) Yes Yes 0/A



(a) Initial

application $50.00;

(6) Initial issuance of

lic. other than lic. hp

endorsement

$125.00; )c) Anneal

renewal of lic.

$187.50;

)d) Restoration of

renobed lic. $150.00; Reqoires licensees graduate from

)e) Restoration of an accredited social work program

espired Iic. $200.00; corresponding to categnry of

)f) Renewal of license sought (Masters of Social

delinquent lic. Work or higher); Requires

$000.00; )g) Initial completion of a period of

issuance of Iic. by supewised clinical practice;

endorsement pars. Requires licensees pass qualifying
to NRS 641R.271 national eoaw corresponding to

$125.00; (6) Initial category of license sought. Requires
issuance of lic. bp two sets of completed Rngerprint

endorsement purs. cards with written authorization for

to NRS 0418.272 the Roard to forward those cards to

$62.00; )i) Initial the Central Repository for Neaada

issuance of Records of Criminal History for Fee is required for processing of
proaisional submission to the Federal Rareau application pursuant to NAC
lic,$03.75. yes of Innestigation for its report. 6418.110.

Licensed clinical Sen NRS in Rio and

ocial worker NAC in 616 Pes (See abone) Yes Yes N/A None



3H

Board Review of Hearing for Virgilio DeSio, License No. 6200-C. (For Possible

Action).



31

Board Review of Application for LMSW, Chester Turner. (For Possible Action).



3J

Review and Discuss Status of Recruitment Process (For Possible Action).



3K

Review and Discuss 2023 Legislative Session — Flynn Guidici Government Affairs

Advocates Report. (For Possible Action).



3L

Executive Director’s Report (Informational).



1. Job Knowledge, Judgment, Critical Thinking and Problem Solving: Measures the extent to which Board Rating
the employee displays sound judgment and resolves issues using good reasoning, distinguishing
between relevant and irrelevant information, and exhibiting creativity in problem solving. Also
measures the employee’s comprehensiveness in research, verifying accuracy of facts and arriving at
well-supported and sound conclusions. Keeps up to date on relevant changes affecting area of
practice/job assignment.

Conducts work in an efficient and comprehensive manner, determining relevant authorities (e.g.
statutes, regulations, precedents, etc.).

Identifies relevant issues and uses critical thinking.

Takes responsibility for decisions.

Understanding of Architecture, Interior Design and Residencia Design practice.

Demonstrates a willingness to continue to learn and take on increasingly complex work.

Comments:

Nevada State Board of Architecture, Interior Design and Residential Design

Employee Name:

Title:

Evaluation Date:

Evaluation Type:

MISSION
The mission of the NSBAIDRD is to promote, preserve, and protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public by regulating
architects, registered interior designers, and residential designers to provide competent professional services in the built
environment.

OVERVIEW
Evaluations will designate the employee’s performance as one of the following levels: outstanding, exceeds expectations,
acceptable, needs improvement, unsatisfactory and N/A. This evaluation depends on the employee’s work during the
preceding year (or other period that may be designated, such as when an evaluation is delayed for any reason.)

PROCEDURE
The Nevada State Board of Architecture, Interior Design and Residential Design will conduct an evaluation at a designated
public Board Meeting. They may discuss the evaluation, review the employee’s work during the last year and establish goals
for the upcoming year.

The rating factors are as follows:
OUTSTANDING = Exceeds all expectations. Serves as a model for others.
EXCEEDS EXPECTATIONS = Works above the normal job requirements, excelling in most areas.
ACCEPTABLE = Fulfills the normal job requirements with some strong points.
NEEDS IMPROVEMENT = Improvement is needed to meet acceptable standards.
UNSATISFACTORY = Job requirements are not met, corrective action is required.
N/A = The factor is not considered in rating the employee.



2. Workload management: Measures the employee’s ability to effectively manage his or her Board Rating
workload, including skills in organizing and planning work according to deadlines, anticipating
developments, and managing multiple assignments. Also measures employee’s productivity
and ability to maximize available time and resources.
Efficiently organizes work to meet stated deadlines, produces quality work product, promptly
responds to communications, makes timely decisions and meets all deadlines.

Comments:

3. Communication: Measures employee’s performance in exchanging information with Board Rating
others in an effective, appropriate, timely, clear, concise, logical, and organized manner.
Communications include listening, speaking, writing, presenting, sharing information and use
of email.
Listens to and considers the views of others.

Participates in meetings and conferences, contributing to the understanding of problems and
assisting in reaching workable solutions.

Acts in a courteous and respectful manner when communicating.

Comments:

4. Professionalism and Interpersonal Skills: Measures employee’s development and Board Rating
maintenance of positive and constructive internal/external relationships, as demonstrated by
willingness to function as a team player, give and receive constructive criticism, seek advice,
respond to authority, recognize the needs and sensitivities of others, and treat others in a fair
and equitable manner. Measures employee’s commitment to personal/professional
development, staying current on pertinent issues, and seeks to improve knowledge and skills.
Builds and sustains productive working relationships with colleagues and support staff.

Contributes to an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment, assuring that
all employees can do their best work.

Sets a good example through commitment to quality, teamwork, and self-development.

Comments:

5. Training/Education

Attends or participates in at least one (1) training/education program annually

Board Rating

Comments:

6. Management and Supervision: Measures leadership, judgment, initiative, and Board Rating
achievement of expectations.

Effectively manages programs/projects, employees and resources to produce positive results.

2



Sets goals and priorities for departments of responsibility.

Promotes teamwork, collaboration, staff development, diversity, inclusiveness and effective
communication.

Provides fair, useful performance feedback and completes performance evaluations for direct
reports in a timely manner.

Recognizes exemplary performance and noteworthy accomplishments.

Deals effectively with management challenges.

Provides input during the creation of the annual budget and adheres to the agency and
department specific budget.

Comments:

PRoFEssIoNAL DEVELOPMENT — Employee SELF-ASSESSMENT

1. Describe accomplishments, contributions to the agency, and projects/cases handled during the review period that you
believe should be included in assessing your performance.

(See Board Achievement enclosed)

2. Describe your areas of strength and areas where you may need improvement.

3. Establish goals that will improve the quality and efficiency of your work.

4. List the action steps necessary to accomplish these goals.

Committee work and classes/training completed

Points Scale
5 points = Outstanding
4 points = Excellent
3 points = Acceptable
2 points = Needs Improvement
1 point = Unsatisfactory

3



I have reviewed and discussed this performance evaluation with the Executive Director, and I have been given an

opportunity to comment on its contents. I understand my individual job responsibilities and the performance expectations.

Executive Director:

_____________________________________________________________

Date:_______________________
(Signature)

Board Chair:

_____________________________________________________________Date: ______________________

(Signature)

Rev. [9/2020]

4



State of Nevada

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR MFT & CPC

Employee Review Form

Employee Information

Employee Name: Dr. Lynne Smith Employee Title: Executive Director

Reviewer Name: Period of Review:

Rating: 4 Excellent 3= Good 2= Fair 1 Poor

Performance Measure 4 3 2 1 Comments
Job Knowledge
Productivity
Work Quality
Attitude
Initiative f —

Dependability F_____
Punctuality
Communication
Overall Performance

Reviewer Comments

Suggested Compensation: [

SUBMITSubmit form via email to Chairman: Steven Nicholas



STATE OF NEVADA

BOARD OF OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY
6170 Mae Anne Ave. Suite 1

Reno, Nevada 89523
Phone: (775)7464101 IFax. (775)7464105

Steve Sisolak Email: boardinvotorg I Website: wvv.nvot.org Loretta F Ponton

Governor Executive Director

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Executive Director is the chief administrative officer for the Board of Occupational
Therapy. The position is responsible for the overall management of the Board’s office,
activities and functions.

The following represent the duties/responsibilities of the position - on a scale of 1 - 5 with 5
being the highest and 1 being the lowest, complete an evaluation of how well the individual met
or exceeded the criteria. A score of 3 = met criteria.

_____

Preparation and administration of the Board’s aimual budget; agency accounting and
reporting.

_____

Promoting the Board’s functions through written publications; maintaining the Board
website; coordinating Board sponsored activities; and presenting at meetings, workshops, and
other educational settings;

______

Facilitate Board meetings, prepare agendas, supporting documents, and minutes in
accordance with the Nevada Open Meeting law NRS 241; initiate action on Board directives.

______

Serve as Board liaison with individuals and other agencies, including, but not limited to,
the Governor’s office, state agencies, professional organizations such as NBCOT, AOTA,
NOTA.; applicants, licensees, and the public.

______

Oversee all aspects of the licensing, monitoring and compliance functions including
but not limited to maintenance of the Board electronic licensing and regulatory data collection
system; final review and approval of applications for licensure; and performance of monitoring
of licensee compliance with law and regulations;

______

Manage the Board complaint and disciplinary action process to include, but not limited
to, receipt and review of initial complaints, conduct of informal investigations, initial determine
of merit and recommendations for hearing; negotiate consent decrees, facilitate disciplinary
hearings and monitor probationary licensees.

_____

Maintain and manage NRS law and NAC regulation revisions, conduct research and
make recommendations, conduct public workshops and hearings. Review and respond to
legislative actions, bills and requests for information; represent the Board during legislative
sessions at hearings and meetings as directed by the Board.

Total Score Maximum Points 35



STATE OF NEVADA

___

BOARD OF OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY
ii.

6170 Mae Anne Aye, Suite I
Reno, Nevada 89523

Phone: (775) 746M01 / Fax: (775) 746105

Steve Sisolak Email: boardnvot.org / Website: svsvw.nvot.org Loretta L. Ponton

Governor Executive Director

Comments:

Other factors considered in evaluating performance, recommendations for improvement, etc.:

Signature: Date:



NEVADA STATE
BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGICAL EXAMINERS

Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument

NANIE:

1. The overall rating must be consistent with the factor rating and comments, but there is no
prescribed formula for computing the overall rating.

a. Rating System

i. Outstanding. Performance significantly exceeds the Board’s expectations due to
the efforts and ability of the Executive Director when considering the job in its
entirety. Significantly above-standard performance may be exhibited by
consistently completing assignments in advance of deadlines; implementing
plans and/or procedures to increase efficiency or effectiveness of work; working
independently with little direction; and consistently meeting Board goals.

ii. Above Average. Performance exceeds the Board’s expectations due to the
efforts and ability of the Executive Director when considering the job in its
entirety. Performance is beyond what is expected of an Executive Director in this
position.

iii. Average. Performance meets the minimum expectations of the Board. The
Executive Director adequately performs the duties and responsibilities of the
position.

iv. Needs Improvement. The Executive Director’s performance fails to meet the
Board’s minimum expectations due to lack of effort and/or ability when
considering the job in its entirety. Performance requires improvement in
numerous and/or important aspects of the position.

v. Not Applicable. Rater is unable to assess the Executive Director in this area, or
the area is not applicable to the employee’s job.

b. Evaluation Tool Instructions

i. To indicate the rating of any performance factor, an “X” mark should be placed
in the appropriate rating column and in the “Overall Rating” column on each
page. Additional spaces have been provided to accommodate other critical
performance factors identified by the Board.

ii. Comments may:

1. Include factual examples of work especially well or poorly done, and

2. Provide suggestions as to how performance can be improved.

iii. The Overall Ratings must be consistent with the factor ratings and comments,
but there is no prescribed formula for computing the overall rating.

iv. Overall Comments may consist of a summary of comments from specific
categories, general comments, or comments on other job-related factors which
the rater wishes to discuss. Additional pages may be attached.

vi; Adopted 3/26/2021



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 2

OVERALL RATING:

Outstanding Above Average Average Needs Improvement

Overall Comments (Attach additional pages, if necessary)

I have participated in a discussion of overall job performance:

Executive Director

I,

Agree LI Disagree, with the rating(s) expressed in this performance

review. (additional documents/evidence may be attached, as necessary)

Signature:

_______________________________________

Date:

____________________

Board President

Signature:

_______________________________________

Date:

____________________

vi; Adopted 3/26/2021



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 3

.4J
ID C
C ci)

1. Relationship with the ci) v’ E -Q
C >cz Q) -‘

Board ..

.‘-‘ Q) Ci) (V0 Z-
(ID

.4-,
D
0

1 Maintains respect and trust of LI LI LI LI LIBoard members.

2 Provides Board with advice
during consideration of issues. LI LI LI LI LI

3 Keeps Board informed of
progress of Board programs on a LI LI LI LI LI
regular basis.

4 Remains impartial and treats all
Board members in a professional LI LI LI LI LI
manner.

5 Functions as effective liaison
between Board and Board Staff. LI LI LI LI LI

6 Provides Board with complete,
clear, and accurate reports, LI LI LI LI LI
minutes, etc.

7 Responds promptly to requests
for information. LI LI LI LI LI

8 Is readily available to Board
members. LI LI LI LI LI

9 Responds to constructive
suggestions or criticism. LI LI LI LI LI

OVERALL RATING: LI LI LI LI LI

vi; Adopted 3/26/2021



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 4

1. Relationship with the Board

Comments: (Attach additional pages, if necessary.)

vi; Adopted 3/26/2021



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 5

.4-,
C

ci)
G)’

ci) vE -

2. Execution of Board Policy > u cv
(D O- cv> OU

ci) Q)0 Z-
<> >Cr)

4-i
D
C

..

Understands and complies with
the overall policies, laws, and El El El El El
regulations of the Board.

2 Implements Board policies. El El El El
3 Efforts lead toward successful

accomplishment of goals. El El El El El
4 Ensures effective and efficient

management of enforcement and El El El El El
licensing programs.

5 Keeps Board apprised of
licensing and enforcement El El El El Elprogram and process
developments.

6 Manages Board legislative
program and efforts. El El El El El

7 Manages sunset review process. El El El El El
OVERALL RATING: El El El El El

vi; Adopted 3/26/202 1



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 6

2. Execution of Board Policy

Comments: (Attach additional pages, if necessary.)

vi; Adopted 3/26/202 1



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 7

.4-Jc3,
. cV G)
- -

3. Administrative Functions c > r
(D OL)
.‘J O Z-(‘ >

cL4J

D
0 2

—

Plans, organizes and directs
Board administrative functions
and staff.

2 Provides oversight, direction, and
management of the Board’s
annual budget, expenditures and El El El El El
revenues.

3 Keeps Board apprised of budget
developments. El El El El El

4 Identifies, recommends and, as
directed, seeks necessary
changes to laws and regulations
through proposed legislation
and/or the Office of
Administrative Law.

5 Ensures compliance and
enforcement of departmental,
state, and federal policies and
procedures.

6 Develops and executes sound
personnel practices and El El El El El
procedures.

OVERALL RATING: El El El El El

vi; Adopted 3/26/2021



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 8

3. Administrative Functions

Comments: (Attach additional pages, if necessary.)

vi; Adopted 3/26/202 1



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 9

.‘-I
Q•I C
C
5 -

4. Public Liaison > (U (U
(U O- CD> OL)
4-’ )o Z-
C’) <> >4-,
D
0

.:

Represents the Board before the
public. El El El El El

2 Directs consumer outreach
programs. El El El El El

3 Manages Board’s public relations
effort. ElElEl ElEl

4 Directs liaison with educational
institutions. El El El El El

5 Solicits and gives attention to
problems and opinions of all El El El El El
groups and individuals.

6 Represents the Board before
industry associations to provide El El El El Elinformation regarding the Board’s
laws, regulations, programs, and
policies.

OVERALL RATING: El El El El El

vi; Adopted 3/26/202 1



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 10

4. Public Liaison

Comments: (Attach additional pages, if necessary.)

vi; Adopted 3/26/202 1



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 11

4i

C
c cii

5. Board Office >ID ci) CL)
.-J Cci) ci)
(I) <> > z
.-I

0. 0.D
0

Keeps Board informed of Board
issues, problems, and El El El El El
accomplishments.

2 Maintains a positive working
relationship with other state [] El El El
agencies and programs.

3 Keeps the Board apprised of key
budget issues. El El El El El

4 Provides oversight, direction, and
management of Board staff’s El El El El Elrecruitments, development, and
performance. Follows sound
personnel practices and
procedures.

5 Conforms to State and Board
mandated trainings and other El El El El El
administrative requirements.

6 Monitors validity/defensibility of
examinations and provides El El El El Elappropriate recommendations for
action.

7 Manages sunset review process. El El El El El
OVERALL RATING: El El El El El

vi; Adopted 3/26/2021



Executive Director Performance Evaluation Instrument
Pg. 12

5. Board Office

Comments: (Attach additional pages, if necessary.)

vi; Adopted 3/26/2021


	April 19 Board Packet II
	April 19 Board Packet

